
 
 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 
FOR 

 

Tuesday, January 18, 2011 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
 
 

6:30pm Work Session 
 
 

7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting 
 

URA Board of Directors Meeting 
(Following the regular City Council Mtg.) 

 



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
January 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
WORK SESSION 6:30PM 
 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
 
4. CONSENT: 

 
A. Approval of January 4, 2011 City Council Minutes 
B. Resolution 2011-007 Accepting the 2009-2010 Annual Financial Report for the year 

ended June 30, 2010 
C. Resolution 2011-008 Amending Resolution 2011-004 to correct an error in the 

Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Wilsonville to  reflect the correct dollar of 
the IGA 

 
 

5. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Resolution 2011-009 Authorizing the City to enter into an Interstate Cooperative 

Procurement Agreement for Prefabricated Restrooms for Stella Olsen Park  
(Kristen Switzer, Community Services Director) 
 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Metro Update, Carl Hosticka 
 
 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 

8. CITY MANAGER AND STAFF REPORTS 
 
 

9. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 

January 18, 2011 
 
 

6:30 Work Session 
 

7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting
 

URA Board Meeting 
(Following the City Council Mtg.) 

 
Sherwood City Hall 
22560 Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 
  

1



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
January 18, 2011 
Page 2 of 2 

10. ADJOURN TO URA BOARD MEETING 
 

 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday 
prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior 
Center, and the City's bulletin board at Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available to the public at the Library.  The 
public may make copies of any Council meeting materials, at no charge.     
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and 
the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: 
citycouncil@ci.sherwood.or.us.   

2



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
January 4, 2011 
Page 1 of 5 

 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

January 4, 2011 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 5:08pm 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Dave Heironimus, Councilors 

Dave Grant, Linda Henderson, Robyn Folsom and Lee Weislogel. Councilors Elect, Bill 
Butterfield & Matt Langer. 

 
3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Jim Patterson, Public Works 

Director Craig Sheldon, Finance Director Craig Gibons and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City 
Attorneys Chris Crean and Jack Hammond. 

 
4. MEDIA PRESENT: Oregonian Reporter Eric Florip and Ray Pitz with the Sherwood Gazette. 

 
5. TOPIC DISCUSSED: Water Supply Project, pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f), Exempt Public 

Records. City Attorney Hammond provided the Council with a memorandum and an update on 
the project (see record, Exhibit A). 

 
6. ADJOURNED: Mayor Mays adjourned the Executive Session at 6:00pm and convened to a 

Work Session. 
 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the Work Session to order at 6:10pm 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Dave Heironimus, Councilors 

Dave Grant, Linda Henderson, Robyn Folsom and Lee Weislogel. Councilors Elect, Bill 
Butterfield & Matt Langer. 

 
3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Finance 

Director Craig Gibons, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Police Captain Mark Daniel, Human Resource 
Manager Anna Lee and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorneys Chris Crean. 

  
4. MEDIA PRESENT: Oregonian Reporter Eric Florip and Ray Pitz with the Sherwood Gazette. 
 
5. TOPIC DISCUSSED: Council conducted interviews of candidates for vacant City Council Seat 

5. Applicants James Copfer, Dave Luman, Bill Millington, Daniel King and Krisanna Clark were 
interviewed. Candidates Ross Schultz and Dave Heironimus withdrew their applications.  

3



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
January 4, 2011 
Page 2 of 5 

 
6. ADJOURNED: Mayor Mays adjourned the Work Session at 6:45pm and convened to the 

regular Council meeting. 
 
 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 7:03pm.  
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL: 
 

3. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Councilors Dave Grant, Linda Henderson and Robyn 
Folsom.  

 
4. STAFF & LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Jim Patterson, Police Chief Jeff Groth, 

Finance Director Craig Gibons, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Community Development 
Director Tom Pessemier, Economic Development Manager Tom Nelson, Community Services 
Director Kristen Switzer, City Engineer Bob Galati and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City 
Attorney Chris Crean. 
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

5. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Recognition of Outgoing Council Members 
Mayor Mays recognized outgoing Council President Dave Heironimus and Councilor Lee 
Weislogel for their service to the community and presented them with Certificates of 
Appreciation. 
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item.  
 
B. Oath of Office Re-elected and New Council Members 
City Manager Jim Patterson administered the Oaths of Office to reelected Mayor Keith Mays, 
Councilor Elect Bill Butterfield elected to Council Seat 3, Councilor Elect Matt Langer elected to 
Council Seat 1, reelected Councilor Dave Grant elected to Council Seat 1. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

C. Appointment to Council Seat 5 
Mayor Mays explained the City Council accepted applications for vacant City Council Seat 5 
and received 7 applications. The Council conducted 5 interviews during their work session 
earlier this evening, with 2 applicants withdrawing. Candidates interviewed were James Copfer, 
Dave Luman, Bill Millington, Daniel King and Krisanna Clark. 

Mayor Mays stated the following motion: 

MOTION: FROM MAYOR KEITH MAYS TO APPOINT DAVE LUMAN TO CITY COUNCIL 
SEAT 5, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DAVE GRANT. 

4



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
January 4, 2011 
Page 3 of 5 

Prior to receiving a vote, Mayor Mays explained his criteria for selecting a candidate; service to 
the community and personal background. Mayor Mays stated Daniel King and Dave Luman 
were his top candidates due to their prior service on the City Council and their service to the 
community and his final selection of Dave Luman was due to his professional background and 
experiences. 

Mayor Mays asked for Council comments on the motion. 

Councilor Folsom stated she was impressed by Mr. Luman’ interview and application and 
asked what was Mr. Luman’s impediment at the November 2010 election that caused him to 
withdraw his candidacy. Councilor Folsom stated she was concerned with this impediment and 
Mr. Luman’ current appointment to the Council.  

Councilor Grant stated he agrees that candidates Daniel King and Dave Luman are the top 
candidates with their prior experience on Council and commented regarding  the short term of 
the seat and the candidate not having a lot of time to learn the position. 

With no other comments received the Mayor called for a vote on the pending motion. 

VOTE: MOTION PASSED 4:2 (MAYS, GRANT, BUTTERFIELD AND LANGER IN FAVOR, 
HENDERSON AND FOLSOM OPPOSED). 

Mayor Mays called Mr. Luman forward to be sworn in. City Manager Jim Patterson 
administered the Oath of Office and Mr. Luman was seated to City Council Seat 5. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

D. Selection of Council President 
 
Mayor Mays explained the Council President presides in the Mayor’s absence and on occasion 
performs more duties in comparison to other Councilors and said the term of Council President 
is for one calendar year. Mayor Mays asked for nominations. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD TO NOMINATE COUNCILOR DAVE 
GRANT AS COUNCIL PRESIDENT, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DAVE LUMAN. 
COUNCILOR GRANT ACCEPTED THE NOMINATION. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED 
IN FAVOR. 
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Student Achievement Recognition 
 

Mayor Mays explained the City Council recognizes high school students that achieved a perfect 
4.0 GPA for the entire school year and said the Council will be recognizing approximately 92 
students who achieved this accomplishment in the 2009-10 school year. Mayor Mays with the 
assistance of City Manager Jim Patterson called forward each student and presented them with 
a Certificate of Achievement. 

5



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
January 4, 2011 
Page 4 of 5 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item.  

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. Approval of November 16, 2010 City Council Minutes 
B. Approval of December 7, 2010 City Council Minutes 
C. Approval of December 16, 2010 City Council Minutes 
D. Resolution 2011-001 Reappointing James Boscole to the Cultural Arts Commission 
E. Resolution 2011-002 Appointing Cydney Corl Hill to the Cultural Arts Commission 
F. Resolution 2011-003 Appointing Jim Haynes to the Cultural Arts Commission 
G. Resolution 2011-004 authorizing City Manager to enter into an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the City of Wilsonville regarding construction, ownership, and 
operation of meter vault service connection of the Boeckman Road to Grahams Ferry 
Road water transmission line (segment 5a) with Sherwood transmission line 
segment 6 and a transmission pipeline connection (segment 5b) from the meter vault 
to water transmission segment 5a 

H. Resolution 2011-005 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a temporary Water 
Supply Agreement between the City of Wilsonville and the City of Sherwood for 
pressure testing, flushing and provisions for refresh water for a newly constructed 
Sherwood 48 inch diameter transmission line (segment 6–9 - 18,000 lf) 

 

Prior to asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, Mayor Mays stated there were a 
few errors and made the following motion to amend the Consent Agenda. 

MOTION: FROM MAYOR MAYS TO AMEND THE CONSENT AGENDA, ITEM G, SECTION 
1 OF RESOLUTION 2011-004 TO INCLUDE EXHIBIT B, SHARED ESTIMATED COSTS AND 
AMEND THE DOLLAR FIGURE THROUGHOUT THE IGA OF $8,138,043 TO $6,854,043 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN 
FAVOR. 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA 
AS AMENDED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ROBYN FOLSOM. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS 
VOTED IN FAVOR. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item and asked if any Council member had anything 
to declare. 

Councilor Matt Langer declared a potential conflict of interest as the project is adjacent to his 
upcoming development project and because of the development agreement the Langers have 
with the City. Mr. Langer excused himself and sat in the audience. 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution 2011-006 Awarding a contract to construct the SW Oregon Street – SW 
Adams Avenue Improvements Project (Bob Galati, City Engineer) 

 
City Engineer Bob Galati came forward and recapped the staff report. 
 
Mayor Mays thanked Bob and asked for Council questions. 
 

6



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
January 4, 2011 
Page 5 of 5 

Councilor Bill Butterfield asked if there was a reason for starting construction in the winter. Bob 
replied we have an ODOT Rail Order for the railroad crossing and it has a limited narrow 
timeframe in which we can construct and this begins in January and must be completed by 
March. Bob explained it would not be conducive to split up the project and do the railroad 
portion without continuing with the Adams Ave. portion and said the bid prices would be 
different.  
 
Councilor Folsom asked in regards to the Rail Order expiring and not getting it renewed and 
Bob explained if the City missed this window it would be very unlikely the City would get 
another chance to have the Rail Order approved. 
 
Councilor Butterfield asked if the contractor was aware of this and asked if there are penalties 
in their contract. Bob replied the contract for the Rail Order will be a separate contract run by 
the Rail Company and the City will pay for that through this process. 
 
Councilor Folsom asked Bob to explain how the project will be funded. Bob stated there are 
several funding sources, an MSTIP fund that we obtained from the County for $4 million and 
we have TIF funding which is a percentage of it, SDC funds from different portions of 
infrastructure, which includes water, sanitary, storm and transportation and a URA grant for $1 
million. 
 
With no other questions from Council, Mayor Mays asked for a motion. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2011-
006, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON. MOTION PASSED 6:0 
(COUNCILOR MATT LANGER DID NOT PARTICIPATE). 
 

9. ADJOURNED: 
 
Mayor Mays adjourned at 7:50pm  
 
 
 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder    Keith S. Mays, Mayor 

7



 DRAFT 

Resolution 2011-007 
January 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (93 pgs) 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-007 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 2009-2010 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Oregon requires all local governments to have their annual 
financial reports audited and submitted to the Secretary of State’s Office by December 
31st annually, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood has completed its annual financial report for the year 
ended June 30, 2010, and 
 
WHEREAS, the firm of Mueller, Grove and Swank has completed the required audit of 
the City’s annual financial report, attached as Exhibit A. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1: To accept the Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 

2010 and the associated auditor’s reports, attached as Exhibit A. 
Section 2: This Resolution is effective upon its approval and adoption. 

 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 18th day of January 2011. 
 
 
  _____________________ 
  Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________   
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

8



Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 1 of 93

9



CITY OF SHERWOOD
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 Page 
 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 List of Elected Officials        i 
 Organization Chart         ii 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 Independent Auditor's Report        1-2 
 Management's Discussion and Analysis      3-8 
 Basic Financial Statements 
  Government-wide Financial Statements 
   Statement of Net Assets        9 
   Statement of Activities        10 
  Fund Financial Statements 
   Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds      11 
   Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets 12 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 13 
   Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
     Fund Balance - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities   14 
   Balance Sheet - Enterprise Funds       15 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Enterprise Funds 16 
   Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds     17 
  Notes to Basic Financial Statements       18-40 
 Required Supplementary Information 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -  
   Budget and Actual - Governmental Funds 
    General Fund         41-44 
    Asset Depreciation Fund             45 
    Urban Renewal Agency General Fund      46 
 Other Supplementary Information 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -  
   Budget and Actual - Governmental Funds 
    General Construction Fund       47 
    Debt Service Fund        48 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -  

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis - Enterprise Funds 
    Water Fund         49-50 
    Sanitary Fund         51-52 
    Storm Fund         53-54 
    Street Fund         55-56 
    Telecommunications Fund       57 
  Schedule of Property Tax Transactions and Balances     58 
STATISTICAL SECTION 
 Government-wide Information 
  Government-wide Expenses by Function         59 
  Government-wide Revenues           60 
 Fund Information        
  General Government Expenditures by Function          61   
 General Government Revenue by Source           62 
  General Government Fund Balance            63 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 2 of 93

10



 Property Taxes 
  Property Tax Levies and Collections            64 
  Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Property          65 
  Property Tax Rates              66 
  Principal Taxpayers              67 
 Debt  
  Computation of Legal Debt Margin            68 
  Ratio of Debt to Assessed Value and Debt per Capita          69 
  Ratio of Debt Service Expenditures to General Governmental Expenditures          70 
  Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt          71 
 Other 
  Demographic Statistics             72 
  Construction               73 
  Miscellaneous Statistics             74 
COMPLIANCE SECTION 
   Independent Auditors Report Required by Oregon State Legislation  75-76
    
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 3 of 93

11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 4 of 93

12



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 5 of 93

13



i 

CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CITY OFFICIALS 
JUNE 30, 2010 
 
 
 
 Name      MAYOR     Term  
 
Keith Mays          January 2011 
23237 SW Pine 
Sherwood, Oregon  97140 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Lee Weislogel          January 2011 
14879 SE Lowell Lane 
Sherwood, Oregon  97140 
 
Dave Grant          January 2011 
14845 SW Brooke Court 
Sherwood, Oregon  97140 
 
Dave Heironimus         January 2011 
21989 SW Aldridge Terrace 
Sherwood, Oregon  97140 
 
Linda Henderson         January 2013 
14715 SW Brooke Court  
Sherwood, Oregon  97140 
 
Del Clark          January 2013 
23854 SW Aldersgrove Avenue 
Sherwood, Oregon  97140 
 
Robyn Folsom          January 2013 
15587 SW Oriole Court 
Sherwood, Oregon  97140 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 6 of 93

14



ii 

2010 City of Sherwood Organization Chart 
 

 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 7 of 93

15



 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 8 of 93

16



 

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 9 of 93

17



1 

 
475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200 $ Salem, Oregon 97301 

(503) 581-7788 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members 
Of the City Council 
City of Sherwood, Oregon 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, Oregon  97140 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the City of Sherwood, Oregon (the City) as of and for 
the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management.  Our 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinions. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the City of Sherwood, Oregon as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the changes in financial position and 
cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 19, 2010 on 
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be 
considered in assessing the results of our audits. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion 
and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 10 of 93

18



- 1 - 
 

 
 
 
 
 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Sherwood’s financial statements as a whole.  The introductory section, combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not required parts of the financial statements.  The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements 
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  The introductory and statistical 
sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.   
 
 
       GROVE, MUELLER, & SWANK, P.C. 
       CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
 
       By:   
        Charles A. Swank, A Shareholder 

       
 November 19, 2010 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 11 of 93

19



- 3 - 

City of Sherwood, Oregon 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010 
 

 
As management of the City of Sherwood, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the year ended June 30, 2010.   
 
 

2010 2009

Net assets 114,085,807$ 110,262,819$ 

Change in net assets 3,822,987       3,906,892       

Governmental activities net assets 11,724,090     11,821,925     

Governmental activities change in net assets (97,835)           (942,007)         

Business-type activities net assets 102,361,717   98,440,894     

Business-type activities change in net assets 3,920,822       4,848,899       

Financial Highlights

June 30,

 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This section provides an overview of the City’s basic financial statements.  The basic financial statements consist 
of 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.   
 
Government-wide financial statements.  These statements present information on the City’s finances in a manner 
similar to a private-sector business. 
 
Information in the government-wide financial statements is segregated into governmental activities and business-
type activities.  Business-type activities are the water, sanitary, and storm sewer utilities, streets, and 
telecommunications.  These activities are intended to be self-supporting, with utility charges for services and 
restricted intergovernmental revenue (for streets) covering operations, and infrastructure development fees funding 
capital improvements.  Governmental activities include Administration (City Manager, Finance, City Recorder, 
Human Resources, and Information Services); Community Development (Engineering, Planning, and Building); 
Community Services (Library, Fieldhouse, and Events and Recreation); Public Safety (Police and Emergency 
Management); Public Works (Administration and Facilities, and Parks Maintenance); and Asset Depreciation, 
Urban Renewal, General Construction, and Debt Service activities. These activities are supported to a large degree 
by property taxes.     
 
The statement of net assets shows the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as 
net assets.  All capital assets and long-term liabilities, including those attributable to general government functions, 
are shown in the statement of net assets.        

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 12 of 93

20



- 4 - 

 
The statement of activities shows revenues, expenses, and the change in net assets for the City as a whole.  
Revenues and expenses attributable to specific departments and programs are segregated from general revenues, to 
display the extent to which general revenues support each function.   
 
Fund financial statements:  A fund is a distinct accounting entity that is used to segregate resources restricted to 
particular purposes.  All of the City’s funds are categorized as either governmental funds or proprietary funds.   
 
Governmental funds account for the same functions as reported as governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  However, as more fully explained in the notes to the financial statements, governmental 
funds focus on measuring available spendable resources.  This information is essential for preparation of and 
compliance with annual budgets.  It is a narrower perspective than used in the government-wide financial 
statements, which include long-term resources and uses.  A reconciliation between the balance sheet for 
governmental funds and the statement of net assets for governmental activities is presented following the former.  
A reconciliation between the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for governmental 
funds and the statement of activities for governmental activities also follows the former.     
 
Enterprise fund financial statements provide the same information as the government-wide financial statements, 
only in more detail.  
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its funds, and budgetary comparisons have been 
provided for each. 
 
Notes to the basic financial statements:  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.   
 
Required supplementary information:  In addition to the basic financial statements and notes, this report also 
presents required supplementary information, and budget schedules for the General Fund and major special 
revenue funds. 
 
Other supplementary information: Budgetary schedules for all other funds are included here, as well as schedules 
of property tax transactions for both the City and the Urban Renewal Agency. 
 
Statistical information: Statistical schedules for fund, government wide, general government, property taxes, debt, 
and other information are included here. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
Comparative data for the Statements of Net Assets follows.   
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 13 of 93

21



- 5 - 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Current and other assets 5,454,158$    6,594,507$       19,313,771$    20,123,198$    24,767,929$    26,717,705$     
Capital assets 35,163,958    36,136,194       105,242,994    97,280,212      140,406,952    133,416,406      

Total assets 40,618,116    42,730,701       124,556,765    117,403,410    165,174,881    160,134,111      

Other liabilities 566,414         820,133            1,441,664       1,683,102        2,008,078        2,503,235         
Long-term liabilities 28,327,611    30,088,643       20,753,380      17,279,414      49,080,991      47,368,057       

Total liabilites 28,894,025    30,908,776       22,195,044      18,962,516      51,089,069      49,871,292       

Net assets
Investment in capital assets,

net of related debt 14,235,108    12,402,695       84,563,361      80,054,150      98,798,469      92,456,845       
Restricted 94,621           1,040,102         10,501,066      12,792,835      10,595,687      13,832,937       
Unrestricted (2,605,639)     (1,620,872)        7,297,289       5,593,909        4,691,650        3,973,037         

Total net assets 11,724,090$  11,821,925$     102,361,717$  98,440,894$    114,085,807$  110,262,819$    

City of Sherwood
Statements of Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

June 30,

 
 
At June 30, 2010, the City reported total assets of $165,174,881. Of this amount, $140,406,952 represented long-
lived capital assets, net of depreciation.  The capital assets are used to provide services to the residents of the City 
of Sherwood and do not represent spendable resources available for budgetary appropriation.   
 
In the current year, governmental revenues were approximately $97,800 less than governmental expenses, and 
business-type revenues were approximately $3,920,800 more than expenses, yielding a net increase overall of 
approximately $3,823,000. Governmental revenues were less than the previous year, while expenses were more. 
Business-type revenues increased, while expenses stayed constant. 
 
The comparative Statement of Activities is as follows: 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 14 of 93

22



- 6 - 

 

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services 1,366,664$        6,067,660$       7,434,324$      1,912,531$        4,850,615$        6,763,146$      
Operating grants and contributions 1,181,504          1,761,107         2,942,611        797,277             1,979,035          2,776,312        
Capital grants and contributions 124,903             2,455,333         2,580,236        1,012,409          3,717,888          4,730,297        

General revenues
Property taxes 8,006,976          -                        8,006,976        7,525,619          -                        7,525,619        
Franchise fees 1,646,827          -                        1,646,827        1,392,529          -                        1,392,529        
Intergovernmental 326,799             -                        326,799           364,407             -                        364,407           
Other general revenue 43,517               1,355,965         1,399,482        132,933             579,612             712,545           
Sale of capital assets 196,290             -                        196,290           -                        -                        -                       

     Total revenues 12,893,480        11,640,065       24,533,545      13,137,705        11,127,150        24,264,855      

Expenses
Administration 4,396,849          -                        4,396,849        3,355,687          -                        3,355,687        
Community development 1,514,472          -                        1,514,472        1,705,761          -                        1,705,761        
Public safety 3,817,798          -                        3,817,798        3,937,639          -                        3,937,639        
Community services 1,717,317          -                        1,717,317        1,678,574          -                        1,678,574        
Public works 1,280,597          -                        1,280,597        1,301,233          -                        1,301,233        
Interest on long-term debt 1,131,451          -                        1,131,451        1,548,302          -                        1,548,302        
Water -                        2,682,923         2,682,923        -                        2,880,009          2,880,009        
Sanitary -                        456,138            456,138           -                        526,200             526,200           
Storm -                        671,150            671,150           -                        659,026             659,026           
Street -                        2,834,235         2,834,235        -                        2,444,678          2,444,678        
Telecommunications -                        207,628            207,628           -                        320,854             320,854                 
     Total expenses 13,858,484        6,852,074         20,710,558      13,527,196        6,830,767          20,357,963      

Change in net assets before transfers (965,004)           4,787,991         3,822,987        (389,491)           4,296,383          3,906,892        

Transfers in/(out) 867,169             (867,169)           -                      (552,516)           552,516             -                       

Change in net assets (97,835)             3,920,822         3,822,987        (942,007)           4,848,899          3,906,892        

Beginning net assets 11,821,925        98,440,894       110,262,819    12,763,932        93,591,995        106,355,927    

Ending net assets 11,724,090$      102,361,716$   114,085,806$  11,821,925$      98,440,894$      110,262,819$  

2010 2009

City of Sherwood
Statements of Activities

For the year ended June 30,

 
Governmental activities: 
 
Governmental expenses were funded from the following sources: 
 

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 15 of 93

23



- 7 - 

2010 2009

Charges for services 11% 15%
Property taxes 62% 59%
Other 27% 26%

Total revenues 100% 100%

City of Sherwood
Governmental Activities - Percentage of Funding

For the year ended June 30,

 
 
Overall, total revenues and expenses remained fairly constant.   
 
Business-type activities: 
As in governmental activities, total revenues and expenses remained fairly constant.   
 
Fund Financial Analysis  

Governmental funds:  The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  In particular, unreserved fund balance measures the City’s net 
resources available for spending in the next fiscal year.  At June 30, 2010, total fund balance of the governmental 
funds was $4,174,329. 
 
The General Fund had a fund balance of $1,862,794 at June 30, 2010, an increase of $964,041.  The increase was 
due primarily to the cost saving efforts of the city staff. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
During the year, a supplemental budget was adopted which increased expenditures by $77,500.  The reason for the 
supplemental budget was to provide funding for capital projects in other funds.   Actual revenue for the year was 
approximately $468,000 less than budgeted revenue.  Actual expenditures for the year were approximately 
$611,000 less than budgeted expenditures. 
 
Significant Changes in Major Funds 
 
The General Fund balance increased approximately $1,000,000 from 2009 due to cost cutting measures by city 
staff. The General Construction fund balance decreased by approximately 90%, this is due to the completion of the 
Stella Olsen Stage Cover and the Stella Olsen Parking lot projects. The Water fund balance decreased about 
$1,000,000 from 2009 due to work on the water reservoir and pipeline projects. The Sanitary fund balance 
decreased about $500,000 from 2009 due to infrastructure in the new Brookman area development. The Street fund 
balance increased approximately $800,000 due to the receipt of loan proceeds for the Adams Ave. project. The 
Telecom fund balance doubled from 2009 due to the reduction of capital costs and an increase in service revenue. 
The URA fund balance decreased approximately $1,000,000 due to capital costs related to the Cannery project. 
 
Capital Assets  
 
The City’s investment in capital assets at June 30, 2010 was $140,406,952 net of accumulated depreciation.   
 
Capital assets, net of depreciation, were as follows.  Details of the changes in capital assets can be found in the 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 16 of 93

24



- 8 - 

notes to the financial statements. 
 

2010 2009
Governmental activities

Nondepreciable capital assets 9,534,926$     9,301,914$     
Depreciable capital assets, net 25,629,033     26,834,280     

     Total 35,163,959     36,136,194     

Business-type activities
Nondepreciable capital assets 33,548,239     30,784,012     
Depreciable capital assets, net 71,694,755     66,496,200       

     Total 105,242,994   97,280,212     

Total
Nondepreciable capital assets 43,083,165     40,085,926     
Depreciable capital assets, net 97,323,788     93,330,480     

     Total 140,406,952$ 133,416,406$ 

June 30,

City of Sherwood
Capital Assets

 
Debt Administration 
 
At June 30, 2010, the City of Sherwood had $6,365,000 in general obligation bonds and $42,308,485 in other debt 
outstanding.  All debt is secured by the full faith and credit of the City.  The general obligation bonds are repaid by 
property tax levies.  The other debt is being repaid by rent of the recreational facility, system development charges, 
property tax increment revenue from the City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency, and unrestricted resources.  
Changes in debt are detailed in the notes. 
 
On May 1, 2010 Moody’s Investors Service initiated the local government recalibration of its municipal rating 
scale. All municipal credits rated by Moody’s were changed to a Global Scale Rating (GSR), which better reflects 
the underlying credit quality of municipal issuers compared to that of corporate or sovereign issuers. The City of 
Sherwood had an A2 rating under the Municipal rating scale and now has an Aa3 rating under the GSR. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates 
 
Sherwood’s population growth has slowed considerably over the last four years. Growth levels are expected to 
range from 1 - 3% until the economy starts to turn. The urban growth boundary has been increased, allowing for 
development once building activity increases.    
 
The budget for the year beginning July 1, 2010 includes capital project expenditures of over $18,000,000, with a 
new water supply being the largest project scheduled for construction.  In addition, expenditures related to a new 
water source are expected to total an additional $5-$10 million in the next few years.  Operating uses are budgeted 
to increase to $76,465.  
 
Requests for Information 
 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should 
be addressed to the Finance Director, 22560 SW Pine Street, Sherwood, Oregon  97140.

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 17 of 93

25



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 9 - 

 
 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

4,539,971$      18,531,303$     23,071,274$    
529,081           782,468            1,311,549        
385,106           -                        385,106           

5,454,158        19,313,771       24,767,929      

9,534,926        33,548,238       43,083,164      
35,049,820      97,746,859       132,796,679    
(9,420,788)       (26,052,103)      (35,472,891)     
35,163,958      105,242,994     140,406,952    

Total assets 40,618,116      124,556,765     165,174,881    

221,782           954,144            1,175,926        
8,861,815        10,481,044       19,342,859      

344,632           487,520            832,152           
133,509           29,500              163,009           

19,332,287      10,242,836       29,575,123      
28,894,025      22,195,044       51,089,069      

14,235,108      84,563,361       98,798,469      

85,089             10,501,066       10,586,155      
9,532               -                        9,532               

(2,605,639)       7,297,289         4,691,650        
11,724,090$    102,361,716$   114,085,806$  

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Deferred charges

Capital assets:

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:

Net assets:

Total current and other assets

Nondepreciable capital assets
Capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation

Current portion of long-term debt

Unrestricted

Accounts payable

Invested in capital assets, 

Total capital assets

net of related debt

Total liabilities

Capital projects
Debt service

Other current liabilities
Current portion of compensated absences payable
Noncurrent liabilities

Restricted for:

Total net assets

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 18 of 93

26



 

Operating Capital
Grants and Grants and

Expenses Contributions Contributions

4,396,849$   2,886$            -$                    
1,514,472     433,505          124,903          
3,817,798     61,951            -                      
1,717,317     683,162          -                      
1,280,597     -                      -                      
1,131,451     -                      -                      

Total governmental activities 13,858,484   1,181,504       124,903          

2,682,923     -                      398,682          
456,138        -                      521,268          
671,150        -                      345,319          

2,834,235     1,749,107       1,190,064       
207,628        186,799    12,000            -                      

Total business-type activities 6,852,074     1,761,107       2,455,333       
20,710,558$ 2,942,611$     2,580,236$     

General revenue:
Taxes
Franchise fees
Intergovernmental
Interest 
Other revenue
Gain on sale of capital assets

Transfers

Total general revenue and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Program Revenues

1,330,603        

Governmental activities:
Administration
Community Development
Public Safety
Community Services
Public Works
Interest and costs of long-term debt

Water
Sanitary 
Storm

Departments/Programs
Charges for

613,475$         

48,975             
263,475           

Services

275,851           
164,888           

6,067,660        

1,366,664        

3,780,473        
456,512           

Street
Telecommunications

Business-type activities:

Total 

313,273           

7,434,324$  

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 19 of 93

27



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 10 - 

Govern- Business-
mental type

Activities Activities Total

(3,780,488)$  -$                    (3,780,488)$    
(692,589)       -                      (692,589)         

(3,706,872)    -                      (3,706,872)      
(758,304)       -                      (758,304)         

(1,115,709)    -                      (1,115,709)      
(1,131,451)    -                      (1,131,451)      

(11,185,413)  -                      (11,185,413)    

-                    1,496,232        1,496,232        
-                    521,642           521,642           
-                    1,004,772        1,004,772        
-                    418,209           418,209           
-                    (8,829)             (8,829)             
-                    3,432,026        3,432,026        

8,006,976     -                      8,006,976        
1,646,827     -                      1,646,827        

326,799        -                      326,799           
43,517          135,701           179,218           

-                    1,220,264        1,220,264        
196,290        -                      196,290           
867,169        (867,169)         -                      

11,087,578   488,796           11,576,374      
(97,835)         3,920,822        3,822,987        

11,821,925   98,440,894      110,262,819    
11,724,090$ 102,361,716$  114,085,806$  

Changes in Net Assets

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 20 of 93

28



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 11 - 

Urban
Asset Renewal Total
Depre- Agency General Debt Governmental

General ciation General Construction Service Funds
ASSETS
Cash 2,053,980$ 405,998$ 1,983,161$ 87,294$         9,532$  4,539,965$      
Receivables 395,704      -               133,382      -                     -            529,086           

Total assets 2,449,684$ 405,998$ 2,116,543$ 87,294$         9,532$  5,069,051$      

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 45,039$      -$             174,036$    2,205$           -$          221,280$         
Other liabilities 316,201      -               -                  -                     -            316,201           
Deferred revenue 225,650      -               131,593      -                     -            357,243           

Total liabilities 586,889      -               305,629      2,205             -            894,723           

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Unreserved, undesignated 1,862,794   405,998   1,810,913   85,089           9,532    4,174,326        

Total fund balances 1,862,794   405,998   1,810,913   85,089           9,532    4,174,326        
Total liabilities & fund balances 2,449,684$ 405,998$ 2,116,543$ 87,294$         9,532$  5,069,051$      

As of June 30, 2010
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

City of Sherwood, Oregon

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 21 of 93

29



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 12 - 

Total fund balances reported for governmental funds in the balance sheet differs from 
net assets reported in the statement of net assets for governmental activities.  
The nature and amount of the differences is explained below:

Total fund balances - governmental funds 4,174,326$        

Long-term debt:
Principal balances of bonds, notes, and capital leases, and related unamortized
deferrals, are reported on the statement of net assets but not in the funds.
All liabilities are reported in the statement of net assets; the funds report only those
that will be liquidated with available resources.

Long-term liabilities (27,993,839)      
Deferred charges 385,106             

Governmental funds record only those liabilities that will be liquidated with 
available resources; the statement of net assets records expenses for 
all liabilities incurred, regardless of when they will be paid.

Compensated absences (333,772)           
Accrued interest payable (28,933)             

Capital assets:
Capital assets, net of depreciation, are recorded on the statement of net assets
but not in the funds.

Cost 44,584,746        
Accumulated depreciation (9,420,788)        

Deferred revenue:
Governmental funds record property taxes due but not received within thirty days of
year-end as deferred revenue, a liability.  The statement of net assets does not
show deferred revenue for property taxes. 357,244             

Total net assets - governmental activities 11,724,090$      

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds,

 to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 22 of 93

30



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 13 - 

Urban
Asset Renewal Total

Depre- General Debt Agency Governmental
General ciation Construction Service General Funds

REVENUE
Taxes 4,039,542$ -$             -$                   916,779$ 3,019,360$ 7,975,681$      
Licenses and permits 83,009        -               -                     -               -                  83,009             
Franchise fees 1,578,593   -               -                     -               -                  1,578,593        
Intergovernmental 1,257,337   -               291,317         -               -                  1,548,654        
Charges for services 465,738      27,549     -                     -               42,081        535,368           
Rental income 173,191      -               18,250           -               10,000        201,441           
Infrastructure development fees 114,396      -               124,903         -               -                  239,299           
Fines, finance charges & forfeitures 347,328      -               -                     -               -                  347,328           
Interest 13,855        2,534       4,699             824          21,603        43,515             
Other revenue 98,784        -               -                     -               14,222        113,006           

Total revenue 8,171,773   30,083     439,169         917,603   3,107,266   12,665,894      

EXPENDITURES
Administration 309,456      -               4,690             -               2,834,805   3,148,951        
Community Development 1,274,000   (136)         68,769           -               94,551        1,437,184        
Public Safety 3,696,119   -               -                     -               -                  3,696,119        
Community Services 1,416,830   -               7,676             -               1,563          1,426,069        
Public Works 791,159      136          5,415             -               6,123          802,833           
Debt service

Principal 136,596      -               522,250         670,000   911,016      2,239,862        
Interest 50,416        -               32,049           266,070   723,198      1,071,733        

Capital Outlay 163,986      50,000     521,989         -               267,747      1,003,722        
Total expenditures 7,838,562   50,000     1,162,838      936,070   4,839,003   14,826,473      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 680,082      130,004   49,252           -               -                  859,338           
Transfers out (49,252)       (57,715)    (200,000)        -               (250,000)     (556,967)          
Proceeds from long-term debt -                  -               -                     -               1,000,000   1,000,000        

Total other financing sources(uses) 630,830      72,289     (150,748)        -               750,000      1,302,371        
Net change in fund balances 964,041      52,372     (874,417)        (18,467)    (981,738)     (858,205)          

Fund balances - beginning 898,753      353,625   959,507         27,999     2,792,650   5,032,534        
Fund balances - ending 1,862,794$ 405,998$ 85,090$         9,532$     1,810,914$ 4,174,329$      

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 23 of 93

31



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 14 - 

Amounts reported for governmental funds in the statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances differ from amounts reported in the statement of activities for
governmental activities.  The nature of the differences is explained in Note 1.  Amounts are:

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds (858,207)$     

Long-term debt:
Governmental funds record the proceeds from issuance of bonds, notes, and capital 
leases as increases in resources; payments of principal are recorded as uses of 
resources.  The statement of activities does not show issuance of debt nor principal
payments.  In addition, the statement of activities includes the effects of accrued
interest and amortization of bond premiums; the governmental funds do not.  

Principal paid 2,239,862     
Amortization of bond premium and issue costs (64,185)         
Proceeds from issuance of debt (1,000,000)    
Reclassification of loan balance to Enterprise Funds 564,798        

Governmental funds record expenditures only for those liabilities that will be
liquidated with available resources; the statements of activities records expenses for 
all liabilities incurred, regardless of when they will be paid.

Compensated absences (43,628)         
Accrued interest payable 4,468            

Capital assets:
Governmental funds record the purchase of capital assets as decreases in resources.  
For the statement of activities, only depreciation, which represents the usage of
capital assets over time, is recorded as a use of resources.

Reclass capital assets between funds
Capital outlay 1,003,722     
Depreciation (1,839,189)    
Net book value of assets sold (136,769)       

Deferred revenue:
Governmental funds record property taxes due but not received within thirty days of
year-end as deferred revenue, a liability.  For the statement of activities, all property
taxes receivable are recognized as revenue, regardless of when received. 31,294          

Change in net assets - governmental activities (97,835)$       

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds, to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 24 of 93

32



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 15 - 

Total
Enterprise

Water Sanitary Storm Street Telecom Funds

8,776,140$   3,563,257$   469,925$      5,686,057$   35,924$        18,531,303$         
323,056        245,068        158,649        27,865          27,830          782,468                

9,099,196     3,808,325     628,574        5,713,922     63,754          19,313,771           

29,439,160   199,042        21,098          3,888,938     -                    33,548,238           
18,855,057   10,602,231   19,180,866   48,204,271   904,434        97,746,859           
(3,339,345)    (1,412,841)    (2,344,884)    (18,594,693)  (360,340)       (26,052,103)          
44,954,872   9,388,432     16,857,080   33,498,516   544,094        105,242,994         

Total assets 54,054,068   13,196,757   17,485,654   39,212,438   607,848        124,556,765         

920,761        47                 157               25,677          7,502            954,144                
10,269,135   44,580          146,206        49,337          1,286            10,510,544           

407,052        10,800          -                    69,668          -                    487,520               
11,596,948   55,427          146,363        144,682        8,788            11,952,208           

8,626,481     59,222          351,045        1,204,159     1,929            10,242,836           
20,223,429   114,649        497,408        1,348,841     10,717          22,195,044           

26,095,115 9,292,264 16,372,806 32,259,082 544,094 84,563,361           
2,314,457     3,737,692     308,663        4,140,254     -                    10,501,066           
5,421,066 52,152 306,775 1,464,259 53,037 7,297,289             

33,830,638$ 13,082,108$ 16,988,244$ 37,863,595$ 597,131$      102,361,716$       Net assets

Total noncurrent assets

Receivables

compensated absences payable

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted

Total current assets

Nondepreciable capital assets
Capital assets being depreciated
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Noncurrent liabilities:

Cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets:
Noncurrent assets:

NET ASSETS

Accounts payable
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities
Other current liabilities

Bonds, notes, and

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Balance Sheet - Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Current assets:

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 25 of 93

33



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 16 - 

Total
Enterprise

Water Sanitary Storm Street Telecom. Funds

-$                  -$                  -$                  683,623$      -$              683,623$         
-                    -                    -                    65,484          -                65,484             
-                    -                    -                    1,000,000     12,000      1,012,000        

3,771,112     455,693        1,330,431     311,009        183,351    6,051,596        
2,443            647               -                    2,154            3,448        8,692               
6,918            172               172               110               -                7,372               

1,152,492     65,543          -                    2,229            -                1,220,264        
Total operating revenues 4,932,965     522,055        1,330,603     2,064,609     198,799    9,049,031        

524,136        174,836        156,299        199,119        15,719      1,070,109        
48,583          16,953          18,847          21,301          1,101        106,785           

182,676        48,958          47,659          66,274          3,605        349,172           

623,156        (171,706)       68,491          (103,732)       12,867      429,076           
103,396        14,275          13,692          305,106        42,002      478,471           
300,329        134,354        78,314          30,970          43,163      587,130           
105,623        7,477            15,721          50,109          63             178,993           

11,742          2,444            -                    -                    7,235        21,421             
240,114        126,801        89,149          117,109        4,561        577,734           
262,231        96,175          161,643        2,142,115     77,312      2,739,476        

2,401,986     450,567        649,815        2,828,371     207,628    6,538,367        
Operating income (loss) 2,530,979     71,488          680,788        (763,762)       (8,829)       2,510,664        

56,529          25,068          3,982            49,893          229           135,701           
(280,937)       (5,571)           (21,335)         (5,864)           -                (313,707)         
(224,408)       19,497          (17,353)         44,029          229           (178,006)         

Income before contributions 2,306,571     90,985          663,435        (719,733)       (8,600)       2,332,658        

398,682        521,268        345,319        1,190,064     -                2,455,333        
538,013        -                    -                    2,986            -                540,999           

(177,991)       (219,245)       (684,775)       (326,157)       -                (1,408,168)      
3,065,275     393,008        323,979        147,160        (8,600)       3,920,822        

30,765,363   12,689,100   16,664,265   37,716,435   605,731    98,440,894      
33,830,638$ 13,082,108$ 16,988,244$ 37,863,595$ 597,131$  102,361,716$  

Salaries and wages
Employment taxes
Benefits

Professional & technical services

Net assets - ending

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net assets - beginning

Other materials and services

Total operating expenses

Total nonoperating revenue

Facility and equipment
Other purchased services
Supplies
Community Activities
Minor equipment purchases

Intergovernmental:

Charges for services:

Personal services:

Materials and services:

Depreciation

Interest revenue
Interest expense

Change in net assets

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):

Capital contributions

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:

Operating expenses:

Other revenue

State shared revenue
County revenue
Other Intergovernmental

Utility charges for services
Other charges for services
Utility connection fees

 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 26 of 93

34



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 17 - 

Total
Enterprise

Water Sanitary Storm Street Telecom Funds

4,683,118$       745,995$      1,299,970$   2,036,726$  182,484$     8,948,293$       
(719,536)           (240,895)       (224,420)       (287,251)     (17,210)        (1,489,312)        
(811,740)           (624,659)       (382,037)       (441,935)     (113,016)      (2,373,387)        

3,151,842         (119,559)       693,513        1,307,540    52,258         5,085,594         

503,009            (83,407)         (541,788)       (180,185)     -                   (302,371)           
503,009            (83,407)         (541,788)       (180,185)     -                   (302,371)           

(281,376)           (5,573)           (21,341)         (5,866)        -                   (314,156)           
3,152,556         -                    -                    -                 -                   3,152,556         

(41,758)             (39,670)         (135,728)       (41,758)       -                   (258,914)           
(7,144,837)        (523,428)       (67,615)         (470,028)     (41,016)        (8,246,924)        
(4,315,415)        (568,671)       (224,684)       (522,522)     (41,016)        (5,672,308)        

56,529              25,068          3,982            49,893        229              135,701            

(604,035)           (746,569)       (68,977)         654,726       11,471         (753,384)           
9,380,175         4,309,826     538,900        5,031,328    24,454         19,284,683       
8,776,140$       3,563,257$   469,925$      5,686,057$  35,924$       18,531,303$     

2,530,979$       71,488$        680,788$      (763,762)$   (8,829)$        2,510,664$       

262,231            96,175          161,643        2,142,115    77,312         2,739,476         
(93,062)             223,940        (30,633)         (27,883)       (16,315)        56,047              
572,620            (105,384)       (29,156)         (27,373)       (3,125)          407,582            
35,859              (148)              (1,615)           (557)           3,215           36,754              

(156,785)           (405,630)       (87,514)         (15,000)       -                   (664,929)           
3,151,842$       (119,559)$     693,513$      1,307,540$  52,258$       5,085,594$       

398,682$          521,268$      345,319$      1,190,064$  -$                 2,455,333$       
Refinancing of water debt 10,000,000       -                    -                    -                  -                   10,000,000       

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contribution - private developers

Provided by Operating Activities

Noncash capital activities

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense
(Increase) decrease in receivables
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable

Transfers (to) from other funds for operations

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL 

Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net increase (decrease) in cash

Interest receipts

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2009
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2010

Net cash used by capital financing activities

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Receipts from customers and builders
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers and contractors

Purchase of capital assets

Interest paid on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Debt principal paid

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 27 of 93

35



 

 
- 18 - 

City of Sherwood, Oregon 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2010 
 
 
I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Reporting entity 
 
The City of Sherwood is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and six-member council.  The City 
is managed by a City Manager who reports to the Council.   
 
The City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency (URA), formed July 1, 2001, is a legally separate entity.  The 
Sherwood City Council serves as the Board of Directors for the URA, and is financially accountable for its 
operations.  The URA is included as a component unit in the government-wide financial statements, blended with 
the City. Financial statements of the City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency may be obtained from the Finance 
Director of the City. 
 
There are other governmental agencies and service districts which provide services within the City. These agencies 
have independently elected governing boards and the City is not financially accountable for these organizations. 
Therefore, financial information for these agencies is not included in the accompanying basic financial statements.  
 
B. Government-wide and fund financial statements 
 
The City budgets and maintains its accounting records by fund.  Each fund is a distinct fiscal and accounting entity 
which segregates resources in accordance with specific restrictions or regulations.  This report includes both fund 
financial statements and government-wide financial statements.   
 
The fund financial statements and schedules report information using the measurement focus and basis of 
accounting appropriate to the particular type of fund.  The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the 
statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all the activities of the City using a 
single measurement focus and basis of accounting.   
 
The government-wide financial statements report governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on user 
charges for support.   
   
The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
department or program is offset by related revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific department or program.   Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given department or program, 2) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular department or 
program, and 3) business license revenue.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues 
are reported instead as general revenues.  General revenue includes the following:   

Intergovernmental:  revenue from State revenue sharing, cigarette, and liquor taxes, not attributable to or 
restricted to any one department or program. 
Infrastructure development fees:  System development charges for parks, restricted to general government 
capital projects. 

 
C. Measurement focus and basis of accounting 
 
Both the government-wide financial statements and the enterprise fund financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  The governmental fund financial 
statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.   
 
Measurement focus defines the types of transactions or events that are recorded in a fund’s operating statement.  
Enterprise funds focus on changes in economic resources, much like that of a private-sector business.  
Governmental funds focus on changes in resources available for spending.  The major differences between the two 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 28 of 93

36



 

 
- 19 - 

measurement focuses are the treatment of long-term debt and capital assets.  Governmental funds record issuance 
of long-term debt, principal payments on long-term debt, and the resources provided and used by the sale and 
purchase of capital assets on their operating statements as revenue, expenditures, and other financing sources and 
uses.  Proprietary funds do not record these items on their operating statements, but do record depreciation expense 
as capital assets are exhausted through use over time.   
 
Basis of accounting defines when transactions or events are recorded.  Under the accrual basis of accounting used 
by the enterprise funds, revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash is received or used.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used by 
governmental funds, revenues are recognized when they become available and measurable.  Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 30 days of the end of the fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.   
 
D.  Funds 
 
The City has the following governmental funds: 
 

General:  The General Fund is the primary operating fund.  It accounts for financial resources not accounted 
for in other funds.  All indirect costs incurred on behalf of other funds are initially recorded in the General 
Fund, then subsequently reimbursed by the funds benefiting from the expenditure. 
 
Urban Renewal:  The Urban Renewal Fund is the General Fund of the Urban Renewal Agency.  The fund 
accounts for tax increment funds of the agency, operational costs, and debt service payments. 
 
Special revenue:  The Asset Depreciation Fund (Resolution 2002-020) is a reserve fund, defined in Oregon 
budget law that accumulates money from year to year for major capital asset purchases, improvement, and 
repair, other than those funded by restricted resources.  The Urban Renewal Agency General Fund is included 
as a special revenue fund in these financial statements. 
 
Capital projects:   The General Construction Fund records revenue used to acquire land and to construct City 
buildings, parks, sports fields, recreational facilities, and trails.   
 
Debt service:  The Debt Service Fund accounts for property tax revenues restricted for payment of general 
obligation bonds.  Payments of long-term debt other than general obligation bonds are accounted for in the 
General Fund. 
 

Enterprise funds are used for operations that are similar to business enterprises, where the intent is that costs be 
recovered primarily through user charges or where determination of net income or loss is useful for public policy.  
The City has five enterprise funds:  Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer, Street, and Telecommunications.  Each 
fund records both maintenance activities and capital projects.  The Street Fund receives restricted funding from 
other governments for operations and infrastructure development fees for capital construction.   
 
E.  Fund financial statement presentation 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America define major and nonmajor funds and 
segregate and combine certain financial statements for those considered nonmajor.  The City of Sherwood has 
relatively few funds and has chosen to report all of them as major.   
 
Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are 
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent those standards do 
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Governments also 
have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation.  The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 
 
Enterprise funds distinguish between operating revenues and expenses and nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses result from providing services in connection with the utility’s ongoing operations.  The 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 29 of 93

37



 

 
- 20 - 

principal operating revenues are charges to customers for services, infrastructure development fees charged on 
building permits, and intergovernmental revenue restricted to Street operations.  Operating expenses include 
contracted services for the regional sewage treatment facility, and depreciation.  All revenues and expenses not 
considered operating are reported as nonoperating items. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
F. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity 
 
1.  Deposits and investments 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, balances in the Oregon State Treasury’s Local 
Government Investment Pool (LGIP), and loan proceeds held by the Oregon Economic and Community 
Development Department (OECDD).   
 
LGIP balances can be withdrawn with one day’s notice.  The LGIP operates in accordance with appropriate state 
laws and regulations.  Reported values of the City’s share of the LGIP are the same as fair values.   
 
2.  Receivables 
 
Accounts receivable are largely for property taxes, municipal court fines, and utility services.  Property tax 
receivables become liens on real property if not paid.  Consequently, no allowances for uncollectible accounts are 
provided for them.  An allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded for court fines receivable. 
  
Property taxes levied for the fiscal year beginning July 1 are calculated on assessed values on January 1.  Property 
taxes become a lien on the property on July 1.  The tax roll is certified and billed in October.  Taxes are due in 
equal payments on November 15, February 15, and May 15.  Discounts are allowed for taxes paid in full by 
November 15.  Unpaid taxes are late the day after the due date, and are delinquent on May 16.  Interest accrues on 
all late amounts.  Washington County assesses, collects, and turns over property taxes for Sherwood and all other 
cities in the County. The change in taxes receivable from fiscal year 2008-2009 to fiscal year 2009-2010 is an 
increase of $31,294. 
 
3.  Capital assets 
 
Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined as assets that benefit at least two fiscal periods and have a 
cost of at least $5,000.   
 
Infrastructure is defined as long-lived capital assets that can be preserved for a significantly greater number of 
years than most capital assets, and are normally stationary in nature.  Infrastructure includes such items as water 
and sewer pipes, roads, and bridges.   
 
Purchased or constructed capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if historical cost 
is not known.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  The costs 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not 
capitalized. 
 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
 Assets Years 
 Infrastructure: 
      Paved streets 20 
      Other 100 
 Buildings 50 to 60 
 Land improvements 12 to 20 
 Machinery and equipment 7 to 20 
 Licensed vehicles 10 
 
4. Compensated absences   

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 30 of 93

38



 

 
- 21 - 

 
City employees accumulate earned but unused paid time off and sick leave.  There is no liability for accumulated 
sick leave since the City does not pay any such amounts when employees separate from service.  All unused paid 
time off is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is 
reported in the governmental funds only if they are due because of employee separation, such as resignation or 
retirement.   
 
5.  Long-term debt 
 
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability of the 
applicable activity.  Bond premiums, discounts, deferred charges, and issuance costs are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the bonds on the straight line method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium or 
discount.  Deferred charges and issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the 
related debt. 
 
In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, are 
recognized in the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.   
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are 
reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, 
are reported as expenditures. 
 
6.  System development charges 
 
As part of a new housing or commercial development, developers may be required to construct public 
improvements such as storm drains, sewer lines, and streets.  The developers can apply for system development 
charge (SDC) credits for the eligible cost of those improvements.  When building permits are applied for, SDC's 
are charged; simultaneously, the developers can offset the SDC charge by using SDC credits that had been 
previously granted.  The credits granted are useable for 7 years after acceptance of the public improvements by the 
City.  Any credits not used by then expire.  Unused credits are considered a long-term liability and are included in 
the statement of net assets.   
     
7.  Fund equity 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not 
available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose.  State law provides 
that the cumulative surplus of the Building Department be reserved to cover any future deficits. Designations of 
fund balance reflect intended use of resources approved by the City Council. 
 
 
II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The City records all personnel and indirect costs in the General Fund departments.  Periodically, other departments 
and funds are charged for the net costs incurred on their behalf.  The reimbursements are made based on revenue 
and expenditures recorded on the budgetary basis – the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting.   
 
III. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
In accordance with Oregon budget law, the City budgets all funds, including enterprise funds, using the current 
financial resources measurement focus.  Actual results for enterprise funds are shown on both the budgetary 
(current financial resources) and GAAP basis (economic resources) in this financial report.  
 
The budget process begins with appointment of a Budget Officer and Budget Committee.  Budget 
recommendations are developed through late winter.  The Budget Committee approves the budget in early spring; 
public notices are published and public hearings held; and the Council adopts the budget prior to June 30.   
 
Expenditures are appropriated by Division or by type, as follows: 
 
The General Fund is split into departments which reflect city programs and managerial responsibilities.  These are 
grouped into five divisions for purposes of appropriations. The divisions are: 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 31 of 93

39



 

 
- 22 - 

i Administration 
i Public Safety 
i Public Works 
i Community Development 
i Community Services 

 
The Asset Depreciation, Debt Service, Urban Renewal, General Construction, and the Telecommunication Funds are 
appropriated based on personal services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt service, transfers out and 
contingency.  
 
Enterprise funds are appropriated by the operations or capital programs.  
 
Expenditures cannot exceed appropriations at these legal levels of control.  Management may amend line items in 
the budget without City Council approval so long as appropriations at the legal level of control are not changed.  
The City Council can amend the budget at the legal level of control within certain limits specified by statute. 
 
Final budget amounts in the statements and schedules in the Financial Section reflect the original budget and 
supplemental budgets. 
 
All appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.     
 
IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 
A. Cash and Investments 
 
Cash and Investments are reflected on the Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2010 as follows: 
 

Carrying Fair
Value Value

Deposits
Petty cash 2,100$             2,100$               
Deposits with financial institutions 1,403,566        1,403,566          

Investments
Local Government Investment Pool 21,665,608      21,665,608        

23,071,274$    23,071,274$      

 
 
 
Deposits 
 
At June 30, 2010, the City’s deposits with various financial institutions had a bank value of $1,782,836.  All 
deposits not covered by FDIC insurance are covered by the Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP) of the 
State of Oregon.  The PFCP is a shared liability structure for participating bank depositories, better protecting 
public funds though still not guaranteeing that all funds are 100% protected.  Barring any exceptions, a bank 
depository is required to pledge collateral valued at least 10% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are 
well capitalized, 25% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are adequately capitalized, or 110% of their 
quarter-end public fund deposits if they are undercapitalized or assigned to pledge 110% by the Office of the State 
Treasurer.  In the event of a bank failure, the entire pool of collateral pledged by all qualified Oregon public funds 
bank depositories is available to repay deposits of public funds of government entities. 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 32 of 93

40



 

 
- 23 - 

Custodial Risk - Deposits 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to 
it.  At June 30, 2010, the City had deposits of $250,000 insured by federal depository insurance and $1,532,836 
collateralized under the PFCP. 
 
Investments 
 
The State Treasurer of the State of Oregon maintains the Oregon Short-Term Fund, of which the Local 
Government Investment Pool is part.  Participation by local governments is voluntary.  The State of Oregon 
investment policies are governed by statute and the Oregon Investment Council.  In accordance with Oregon 
Statutes, the investment funds are invested as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care, skill and 
caution.  The Oregon Short-Term Fund is the LGIP for local governments and was established by the State 
Treasurer.  It was created to meet the financial and administrative responsibilities of federal arbitrage regulations.  
The investments are regulated by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon investment 
Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895).  At June 30, 2010, the fair value of the position in the Oregon State 
Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Pool was approximately equal to the value of the pool shares.  The investment 
in the Oregon Short-Term Fund is not subject to risk evaluation.  Separate financial statements for the Oregon 
Short-Term Fund are available from the Oregon State Treasurer. 
 
 
Custodial Risk – Investments 
 
For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to 
recover the value of its investments or collateralized securities that are in the possession of an outside party.   
 
The LGIP is administered by the Oregon State Treasury with the advice of other state agencies and is not 
registered with the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission.  The LGIP is an open-ended no-loan diversified 
portfolio offered to any agency, political subdivision, or public corporation of the state that by law is made the 
custodian of, or has control of any fund.  The LGIP is commingled with the State’s short-term funds.  In seeking to 
best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon Legislature established the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board, 
which has established diversification percentages and specifies the types and maturities of the investments.  The 
purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the management and investment of the LGIP.  
These investments within the LGIP must be invested and managed as a prudent investor would, exercising 
reasonable care, skill and caution.  The LGIP is not rated for credit quality. Professional standards indicate that the 
investments in external investment pools are not subject to custodial risk because they are not evidenced by 
securities that exist in physical or book entry form.  Nevertheless, management does not believe that there is any 
substantial custodial risk related to investments in the LGIP. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 33 of 93

41



 

 
- 24 - 

B.  Capital assets 
 
Capital asset activity in the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 9,161,010       $ 330,661        $ -                     $ 9,491,671        
Construction work in progress 140,904          466,272        (563,921)        43,255             

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 9,301,914       796,933        (563,921)        9,534,926        

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 676,411          646,980        -                     1,323,391        
Buildings and improvements 31,364,229     -                   -                    31,364,229      
Machinery and equipment 1,066,230       93,632          -                    1,159,861        
Licensed vehicles 1,400,983       30,098          (228,742)        1,202,339        

Total capital assets being depreciated 34,507,852     770,710        (228,742)        35,049,820      

Less accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure (6,861)             (107,429)       -                    (114,290)          
Buildings and improvements (6,158,776)      (1,525,253)    -                     (7,684,029)       
Machinery and equipment (732,339)         (90,040)         -                     (822,379)          
Licensed vehicles (775,598)         (116,467)       91,974           (800,090)          

Total accumulated depreciation (7,673,573)      (1,839,189)    91,974           (9,420,788)       

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 26,834,279     (1,068,479)    (136,768)        25,629,032      

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $ 36,136,193     $ (271,546)       $ (700,689)        $ 35,163,958      

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 34 of 93

42



 

 
- 25 - 

 

Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 906,051          $ -                    $ -                     $ 906,051           
Construction work in progress 29,877,961     8,634,797     (5,870,570)     32,642,188      

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 30,784,012     8,634,797     (5,870,570)     33,548,239      

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 87,992,878     7,925,435     -                     95,918,312      
Buildings and improvements 57,065            -                    -                     57,065             
Machinery and equipment 1,587,462       4,995            -                     1,592,457        
Licensed vehicles 171,423          7,600            -                     179,023           

Total capital assets being depreciated 89,808,827     7,938,030     -                     97,746,857      

Less accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure (22,160,666)    (2,614,923)    -                     (24,775,588)     
Buildings and improvements (13,245)           (2,290)           -                     (15,535)            
Machinery and equipment (986,541)         (117,593)       -                     (1,104,134)       
Licensed vehicles (152,175)         (4,669)           -                     (156,844)          

Total accumulated depreciation (23,312,627)    (2,739,475)    -                     (26,052,102)     

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 66,496,200     5,198,555     -                     71,694,755      

Business-type Activities Capital Assets, net $ 97,280,212     $ 13,833,352   $ (5,870,570)     $ 105,242,994    

Beginning
Balance

Ending
BalanceDeletionsAdditions

 
Depreciation expense was charged to departments/programs of the City as follows: 
 
Governmental activities:

Administration $ 698,892        
Community development 18,392          
Public Safety 91,959          
Community services 275,878        
Public works 754,068        

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 1,839,189     

Business-type activities:
Water $ 262,231        
Sanitary 96,175          
Storm 161,643
Street 2,142,115     
Telecom 77,312          

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 2,739,475     

 
  

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 35 of 93

43



 

 
- 26 - 

 
C.  Long-term liabilities 
 
1. Debt outstanding 
 
The City uses general obligation bonds and long-term loans to finance construction and acquisition of major 
capital facilities.  General obligation bonds pledge the City’s ability to levy property taxes; long-term notes pledge 
the full faith and credit of the City.   
 
The City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency (URA) began work on construction projects in 2003-04.  The City 
issues debt and builds the capital projects; the URA reimburses the City for debt service, using its property tax 
increment revenue.  Bonds and loans outstanding at June 30, 2010 were: 
 
      Original   Interest   Annual 
  Amount   Rates   Debt Service  
General obligation bonds: 
 2004A&B refunding $ 6,045,000  1 - 3.8% $ 144,838 – 664,050 
 2001 Police facility  3,840,000  4 - 4.875%  294,189 - 307,052 
Long-term loans for the City: 
 2001 YMCA recreation center  1,970,000  2.76 - 5.4%  185,473 – 198,502 
 2002 Public Works and Fieldhouse  1,900,000  4.6%  238,110 
   2005 Sunset Park  2,300,000  3.4%  506,679 – 508,580 
Long-term loans on behalf of the URA: 
 2003 Civic building  2,435,000  3.55 - 4.65%  308,718 – 313,240 
 2003 OECDD Civic building & streets  5,845,708  3 - 4.625%  433,600 – 438,774 
 2004 land purchase  350,000  3.6%  284,520 – 305,590 
   2005 Sports Fields  280,000  3.4%  24,256 – 24,350 
   2005 Old School  550,000  5.75%  55,000 – 56,000 
 2006 URA Streets  1,800,000  5.38%                           175,395  
 2006 Downtown Streets  6,400,000  Variable        480,000 – 485,000 
 2008 URA Line of credit  6,065,000  1.9%  due July 2010 
Long-term loans for the Water Utility: 
 2010 Water supply interim loan  10,000,000  Variable  due May 10, 2011 
 2008 SDW Water Reservoir  6,000,000  3.55%  424,079 
 2009 Stella Olsen Culvert  500,000  3.5%  109,441 
   2009 SDW Water Pipeline           6,000,000                        3.83%                          525,790 
 
The 2006 Downtown Streets loan carries an interest rate equal to 63.5% of the Bank of America prime rate, minus 
0.80%. The interest rate on this loan at June 30, 2010 was 5.36 %. The 2010 Water supply interim loan carries an 
interest rate of 64% of the Bank of American prime rate, plus 0.65%. The interest rate on this loan at June 30, 2010 
was 0.8722016%. The Bank of America prime rate is subject to change on a daily basis. 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 36 of 93

44



 

 
- 27 - 

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2010 are as follows: 
 

Governmental activities
Bonds payable:
2004 A&B Refunding $ 4,305,000     $ -                    $ (495,000)        $ 3,810,000     $ 495,000       
2001 Police station 2,730,000     -                    (175,000)        2,555,000     180,000       
Notes payable:
2001 YMCA 1,220,000     -                    (125,000)        1,095,000     135,000       
2002 Public Works 714,934        (564,798)       (43,846)          106,290        45,898         
2003 Civic building 1,110,000     -                    (260,000)        850,000        270,000       
2003 OECDD 4,742,837     -                    (241,023)        4,501,814     247,253       
2004 Land purchase 175,000        -                    (35,000)          140,000        35,000         
2005 URA Old School 446,000        -                    (30,000)          416,000        32,000         
2005 URA Sports Fields 218,000        -                    (17,000)          201,000        17,000         
2005 Sunset Park 490,000        -                    (490,000)        -                    -                   
2006 URA Streets #1 1,567,533     -                    (93,218)          1,474,315     98,310         
2006 URA Streets #2 6,014,194     -                    (234,763)        5,779,431     241,354       
2008 URA Line of credit 6,065,000     1,000,000     -                     7,065,000     7,065,000    

Total $ 29,798,498   $ 435,202        $ (2,239,850)     $ 27,993,850   $ 8,861,815    

Business-type activities
2002 Public Works $ -                    $ 564,798        $ (164,944)        $ 399,854        $ 172,662       
2008 Interim water 10,000,000   -                    (10,000,000)   -                    -                   
2008 SDW Water Reservoir 5,596,252     403,748        -                     6,000,000     211,079       
2009 Stella Olsen Culvert 477,015        -                    (93,969)          383,046        97,302         
2009 SDW Water Pipeline -                    2,748,808     -                     2,748,808     -                   
2010 Interim Water -                    10,000,000   -                     10,000,000   10,000,000  
SDC Credits 1,152,795     -                    (4,870)            1,147,925     -                   

Total $ 17,226,062   $ 13,717,354   $ (10,263,783)   $ 20,679,633   $ 10,481,043  

Compensated absences payable
Governmental activities $ 290,144        $ 43,628          $ -                     $ 333,772        $ 133,509       
Business-type activities 53,352          20,395          -                     73,747          29,499         

Total $ 343,496        $ 64,023          $ -                     $ 407,519        $ 163,008       

Due Within
2009 Issued During Year 2010 One Year

Outstanding Matured/ Outstanding
July 1, Redeemed June 30,

One Year

Outstanding Matured/

2009 Issued/Assumed

Outstanding
July 1,

During Year

Redeemed June 30,

Due Within
One Year

Due Within

July 1,
Outstanding

June 30,
2010

2009 Issued/Assumed During Year 2010

Matured/
Redeemed

Outstanding

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 37 of 93

45



 

 
- 28 - 

 
The 2004 A & B Refunding bonds were issued to take advantage of lower interest rates and to reduce the City’s 
debt service costs on existing debt.  
 
The 2001 Police Station bonds were issued to provide financing for construction on the police station. 
 
The 2001 YMCA loan was in connection with the acquisition of property. 
 
The 2002 Public Works loan was used to purchase land and a building.  The building was remodeled to house 
Public Works and to include an indoor recreational facility for public use.  The loan is considered a debt of the 
governmental funds because the security is the City’s full faith and credit and taxing power.  Although the revenue 
of the Enterprise funds was not pledged as security for the debt, these funds are contributing toward debt service 
payments on the loan.  The amounts are budgeted and reported as payments for debt service in the Enterprise 
funds. 
The 2003Civic building loan provided funds for construction of the City Hall and library. 
 
The 2003 OECDD loan provided a portion of the funds to construct a new library and City Hall, and fund the first 
$1,000,000 of street improvements in Old Town.  The 2004 cannery loan is for demolition of the cannery site, 
which will be sold for redevelopment by private investors.  
 
The 2004 URA loan was for the sales costs and demolition of the cannery property. 
 
The 2005 URA loans were for the acquisition of the Old School and improvements to sports field property. 
 
The 2006 URA loans provided the bulk of the funds for reconstruction of downtown streets and fixtures. 
 
The 2008 Water debt was extended in 2010. The new terms call for interest quarterly at a variable rate, with 
principal due in full on May 16, 2011. 
 
In 2008 the URA obtained a line of credit for $7,065,000. The final $1,000,000 was drawn on the line of credit in 
2010 for the Adams Street project. The line of credit is due in full on July 8, 2010. 
 
In 2008 the City obtained a $6,000,000 loan for construction of the water reservoir. The final draw on the loan was 
completed in fiscal year 2010 for $403,748. 
 
In 2009 the City obtained a $500,000 loan for storm drain construction. The final payment is due in 2013-14. 
 
In 2009 the City obtained a $6,000,000 loan for construction of the water pipeline. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2010 the City drew down $2,748,808 of the loan proceeds. 
 
In fiscal year 2010 the City brought water operations back in house to be managed by City staff. During the 
process the loan for the allocation of debt for the Public Works loan was reclassified resulting in a transfer of 
balances between the Governmental funds and the Enterprise funds. The amount of the transfer was $564,798. 
 
The City will be obtaining additional financing for the water pipeline in fiscal year 2011; at this time the amount 
needed is undetermined. 
 
 
2.  Debt service requirements  
 
Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows, assuming full drawdown of the water pipeline loan: 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 38 of 93

46



 

 
- 29 - 

 
Fiscal Year

Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2011 495,000$         129,088$   624,088$         180,000$         115,871$   295,871$         
2012 505,000           114,238     619,238           190,000           108,006     298,006           
2013 525,000           97,825       622,825           200,000           99,521       299,521           
2014 540,000           81,419       621,419           210,000           90,396       300,396           
2015 560,000           63,194       623,194           215,000           80,780       295,780           
2016 585,000           43,594       628,594           230,000           70,541       300,541           
2017 600,000           22,500       622,500           240,000           59,494       299,494           
2018 -                       -                 -                       250,000           47,731       297,731           
2019 -                       -                 -                       265,000           35,209       300,209           
2020 -                       -                 -                       280,000           21,750       301,750           
2021 -                       -                 -                       295,000           7,375         302,375           
2022 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       
2023 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       
2024 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       
2025 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       
2026 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       
2027 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       
2028 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       
2029 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       
2030 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       

Unspecified -                       -                 -                       -                       -                 -                       

3,810,000$      551,858$   4,361,858$      2,555,000$      736,674$   3,291,674$      

General Obligation Bond
2004 A&B Refunding

General Obligation Bond
2001 Police Facility

 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 39 of 93

47



 

 
- 30 - 

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2011 135,000$         53,386$     188,386$         45,898$     4,106$       50,004$     
2012 140,000           46,592       186,592           48,045       1,958         50,003       
2013 150,000           39,275       189,275           12,348       142            12,490       
2014 155,000           31,451       186,451           -                 -                 -                 
2015 165,000           23,113       188,113           -                 -                 -                 
2016 170,000           14,251       184,251           -                 -                 -                 
2017 180,000           4,860         184,860           -                 -                 -                 
2018 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2019 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2020 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2021 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2022 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2023 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2024 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2025 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2026 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2027 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2028 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2029 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 
2030 -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 

Unspecified -                       -                 -                       -                 -                 -                 

1,095,000$      212,928$   1,307,928$      106,291$   6,206$       112,497$   

2001 YMCA Recreation Center
City of Shewood

2002 Public Works and Fieldhouse
City of Shewood

 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 40 of 93

48



 

 
- 31 - 

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2011 270,000$         30,176$     300,176$         247,253$         187,997$         435,250$         
2012 285,000           20,590       305,590           258,648           179,838           438,486           
2013 295,000           10,472       305,472           265,197           170,656           435,853           
2014 -                       -                 -                       276,836           161,043           437,879           
2015 -                       -                 -                       283,614           150,523           434,137           
2016 -                       -                 -                       295,560           139,178           434,738           
2017 -                       -                 -                       307,582           127,356           434,938           
2018 -                       -                 -                       319,738           114,745           434,483           
2019 -                       -                 -                       337,037           101,316           438,353           
2020 -                       -                 -                       349,490           86,823             436,313           
2021 -                       -                 -                       367,107           71,446             438,553           
2022 -                       -                 -                       379,902           54,926             434,828           
2023 -                       -                 -                       397,855           37,641             435,496           
2024 -                       -                 -                       415,995           19,240             435,235           
2025 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       -                       
2026 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       -                       
2027 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       -                       
2028 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       -                       
2029 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       -                       
2030 -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       -                       

Unspecified -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       -                       

850,000$         61,238$     911,238$         4,501,814$      1,602,728$      6,104,542$      

2003 Civic Building 2003 OECDD
City of Sherwood URA City of Sherwood URA

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 41 of 93

49



 

 
- 32 - 

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2011 35,000$     6,554$       41,554$     32,000$     23,920$     55,920$     
2012 35,000       4,681         39,681       34,000       22,080       56,080       
2013 35,000       2,809         37,809       35,000       20,125       55,125       
2014 35,000       983            35,983       38,000       18,113       56,113       
2015 -                 -                 -                 40,000       15,928       55,928       
2016 -                 -                 -                 42,000       13,628       55,628       
2017 -                 -                 -                 45,000       11,213       56,213       
2018 -                 -                 -                 47,000       8,625         55,625       
2019 -                 -                 -                 50,000       5,923         55,923       
2020 -                 -                 -                 53,000       3,048         56,048       
2021 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
2022 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
2023 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
2024 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
2025 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
2026 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
2027 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
2028 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
2029 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
2030 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Unspecified -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

140,000$   15,027$     155,027$   416,000$   142,603$   558,603$   

City of Sherwood URA City of Sherwood URA
2005 Old School2004 Land Purchase

 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 42 of 93

50



 

 
- 33 - 

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2011 17,000$     6,834$       23,834$     98,310$         77,086$     175,396$         
2012 18,000       6,256         24,256       103,686         71,710       175,396           
2013 18,000       5,644         23,644       109,358         66,059       175,417           
2014 19,000       5,032         24,032       115,338         60,060       175,398           
2015 20,000       4,386         24,386       121,645         53,751       175,396           
2016 20,000       3,706         23,706       128,298         47,089       175,387           
2017 21,000       3,026         24,026       135,313         40,083       175,396           
2018 22,000       3,032         25,032       142,713         32,682       175,395           
2019 23,000       1,564         24,564       150,518         24,869       175,387           
2020 23,000       782            23,782       158,739         16,647       175,386           
2021 -                 -                -                 167,431         7,968         175,399           
2022 -                 -                 -                 42,966           580            43,546             
2023 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                 -                       
2024 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                 -                       
2025 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                 -                       
2026 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                 -                       
2027 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                 -                       
2028 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                 -                       
2029 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                 -                       
2030 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                 -                       

Unspecified -                 -                 -                 -                     -                 -                       

201,000$   40,262$     241,262$   1,474,315$    498,584$   1,972,899$      

City of Sherwood URACity of Sherwood URA
2005 Sports Fields 2006 Downtown Streets #1

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 43 of 93

51



 

 
- 34 - 

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2011 241,354$         240,466$         481,820$         7,065,000$          21,606$     7,086,606$          
2012 253,008           230,812           483,820           -                          -                 -                          
2013 264,728           220,691           485,419           -                          -                 -                          
2014 271,517           210,102           481,619           -                          -                 -                          
2015 283,378           199,241           482,619           -                          -                 -                          
2016 295,313           187,906           483,219           -                          -                 -                          
2017 307,325           176,094           483,419           -                          -                 -                          
2018 319,419           163,801           483,220           -                          -                 -                          
2019 331,595           151,024           482,619           -                          -                 -                          
2020 343,859           137,760           481,619           -                          -                 -                          
2021 361,287           123,576           484,863           -                          -                 -                          
2022 373,861           108,402           482,263           -                          -                 -                          
2023 391,575           92,513             484,088           -                          -                 -                          
2024 409,405           75,871             485,276           -                          -                 -                          
2025 422,389           58,267             480,656           -                          -                 -                          
2026 445,556           39,787             485,343           -                          -                 -                          
2027 463,862           20,294             484,156           -                          -                 -                          
2028 -                       -                       -                       -                          -                 -                          
2029 -                       -                       -                       -                          -                 -                          
2030 -                       -                       -                       -                          -                 -                          

Unspecified -                       -                       -                       -                          -                 -                          

5,779,431$      2,436,607$      8,216,038$      7,065,000$          21,606$     7,086,606$          

City of Sherwood URA
2006 Downtown Streets 2008 URA

Line of credit

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 44 of 93

52



 

 
- 35 - 

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2011 8,861,815$          897,090$         9,758,905$          
2012 1,870,387            806,761           2,677,148            
2013 1,909,631            733,219           2,642,850            
2014 1,660,691            658,599           2,319,290            
2015 1,688,637            590,916           2,279,553            
2016 1,766,171            519,893           2,286,064            
2017 1,836,220            444,626           2,280,846            
2018 1,100,870            370,616           1,471,486            
2019 1,157,150            319,905           1,477,055            
2020 1,208,088            266,810           1,474,898            
2021 1,190,825            210,365           1,401,190            
2022 796,729               163,908           960,637               
2023 789,430               130,154           919,584               
2024 825,400               95,111             920,511               
2025 422,389               58,267             480,656               
2026 445,556               39,787             485,343               
2027 463,861               20,294             484,155               
2028 -                          -                       -                          
2029 -                          -                       -                          
2030 -                          -                       -                          

Unspecified -                          -                       -                          

27,993,850$        6,326,321$      34,320,171$        

Total governmental notes

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 45 of 93

53



 

 
- 36 - 

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2011 172,662$   15,445$     188,107$   10,000,000$          -$           10,000,000$          
2012 180,742     7,364         188,106     -                            -                 -                            
2013 46,450       535            46,985       -                            -                 -                            
2014 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2015 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2016 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2017 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2018 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2019 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2020 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2021 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2022 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2023 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2024 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2025 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2026 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2027 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2028 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2029 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            
2030 -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            

Unspecified -                 -                 -                 -                            -                 -                            

399,854$   23,344$     423,198$   10,000,000$          -$               10,000,000$          

2010
Interim WaterEnterprise Funds

2002 Public Works

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 46 of 93

54



 

 
- 37 - 

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2011 211,079$         205,507$        416,586$         97,302$      12,139$    109,441$   
2012 218,572           197,747          416,319           100,753      8,688        109,441     
2013 226,331           189,713          416,044           104,326      5,115        109,441     
2014 234,366           181,393          415,759           80,665        1,416        82,081       
2015 242,686           172,777          415,463           -                 -                -                 
2016 251,301           163,856          415,157           -                 -                -                 
2017 260,223           154,618          414,841           -                 -                -                 
2018 269,460           145,052          414,512           -                 -                -                 
2019 279,026           135,147          414,173           -                 -                -                 
2020 288,932           124,890          413,822           -                 -                -                 
2021 299,189           114,269          413,458           -                 -                -                 
2022 309,810           103,270          413,080           -                 -                -                 
2023 320,808           91,882            412,690           -                 -                -                 
2024 332,197           80,089            412,286           -                 -                -                 
2025 343,990           67,877            411,867           -                 -                -                 
2026 356,202           55,232            411,434           -                 -                -                 
2027 368,847           42,138            410,985           -                 -                -                 
2028 381,941           28,579            410,520           -                 -                -                 
2029 395,500           14,539            410,039           -                 -                -                 
2030 409,540           -                      409,540           -                 -                -                 

Unspecified -                       -                      -                       -                 -                -                 

6,000,000$      2,268,575$     8,268,575$      383,046$    27,358$    410,404$   

2008
Stella Olsen Culvert

2009
SDW Water Reservoir

 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 47 of 93

55



 

 
- 38 - 

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Principal Principal Interest Total

2011 -$                   210,000$       210,000$         -$               -$                   10,481,043$    443,091$          10,924,134$          
2012 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     815,857           423,799            1,239,656              
2013 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     692,897           405,363            1,098,260              
2014 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     630,821           392,809            1,023,630              
2015 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     558,476           382,777            941,253                 
2016 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     567,091           373,856            940,947                 
2017 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     576,013           364,618            940,631                 
2018 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     585,250           355,052            940,302                 
2019 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     594,816           345,147            939,963                 
2020 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     604,722           334,890            939,612                 
2021 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     614,979           324,269            939,248                 
2022 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     625,600           313,270            938,870                 
2023 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     636,598           301,882            938,480                 
2024 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     647,987           290,089            938,076                 
2025 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     659,780           277,877            937,657                 
2026 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     671,992           265,232            937,224                 
2027 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     684,637           252,138            936,775                 
2028 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     697,731           238,579            936,310                 
2029 315,790         210,000         525,790           -                 -                     711,290           224,539            935,829                 
2030 315,780         210,000         525,780           -                 -                     725,320           210,000            935,320                 

Unspecified -                     -                     -                       9,720          1,138,205      1,147,925        -                       1,147,925              

6,000,000$    4,200,000$    10,200,000$    9,720$        1,138,205$    23,930,825$    6,519,277$       30,450,102$          

SDW Water Pipeline
2009

Street 
SDC Credits Total business type notes

Water
SDC Credits

 
D.  Transfers  
 
Operating transfers on the budgetary basis of accounting were made as follows. In the enterprise funds, transfers to 
other funds for debt service were budgeted as debt service expenditures, and are reported as such in the individual 
fund statements. For fund financial statements presented on the GAAP basis, such transfers have been reported as 
transfers. 
 

Transfers In Transfers Out
General 372,367$      49,252$         
Asset Depreciation 130,004        -                     
General Construction 49,252          200,000         
Water 538,013        35,004           
Sanitary -                    83,407           
Storm -                    541,788         
Street 2,986            183,171         

1,092,622$   1,092,622$    

 
Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund 
that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting 
the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues 
collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with 
budgetary authorizations. 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 48 of 93

56



 

 
- 39 - 

 
V.  OTHER INFORMATION 
 
A.  Risk management 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and 
omission, injuries to employees, and natural disasters.  The City purchases commercial insurance to minimize its 
exposure to these risks.  Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage for any of the past three years. 
 
B.  Commitments and contingencies 
 
The City is involved in various claims and legal matters relating to its operations which have all been tendered to 
the City’s liability insurer or are being defended by attorneys.  The City does not believe that any of these matters 
will have a material impact on its June 30, 2010 financial statements.  
 
C. Pension plan 
 
Plan Description 
 
The City is a participating employer in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (“OPERS”), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.  The 2003 legislature adopted certain changes in the 
Oregon Public Employee Retirement System, and created a new system for all people hired after August 29, 2003.  
The Public Employee Retirement System (PERS), which was established under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 
238.600, applies to all employees who had established membership prior to August 29, 2003.  The Oregon Public 
Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which was established under ORS 238A and went into effect on January 1, 
2004, applies to all people who are first employed with a public employer after August 29, 2003.  The Public 
Employees Retirement Board (PERB) governs and acts as a common investment and administrative agent for both 
plans which are the retirement plans for most public employers in the State of Oregon.  Benefits are established by 
state statute, and employer contributions are made at the actuarially determined rate for each system as adopted by 
the PERB.  The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, a component unit of the State of Oregon, issues a 
comprehensive annual financial report, which may be obtained by writing to Public Employees Retirement System, 
P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, Oregon 97281-3700. 
 
Both PERS and OPSRP plans provide retirement and disability benefits, post-employment healthcare benefits, 
annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  
 
Funding Status 
 
Covered employees are required by state statute to contribute 6.0 percent of their salary to the plan which is 
invested in the Individual Account Program (IAP).  Employers are permitted to pay employee contributions to the 
fund. 
 
The City is required by statute to contribute actuarially computed amounts as determined by OPERS.  OPERS 
completes an actuarial valuation as of December 31 of odd numbered years for new rates to be implemented July 1 
of the next odd numbered year.  Rates are subject to change as a result of subsequent actuarial valuations and the 
proportion of the system that is funded for each local government employer.   
 
For OPSRP, all employers are included in a single pool, with separate rates assigned for police and fire participants 
and general service participants.  Beginning January 1, 2004 OPSRP rates were set at 13.08 percent for police and 
fire and 9.47 percent for general service employees.  These rates changed to 16.47 percent and 13.20 percent, 
respectively, on July 1, 2007 based on the December 31, 2005 valuation. These rates changed to 11.29 percent and 
8.58 percent, respectively, on July 1, 2009 based on the December 31, 2007 valuation. 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 49 of 93

57



 

 
- 40 - 

 
Annual Pension Cost 
 
The City paid the following contributions to PERS for the fiscal years ending June 30. 

2007-2008 2008-2009 2009-2010
Employer Contributions 571,668$        648,817$        522,422$       
6% Employee Contributions paid by the City 251,008          280,655          313,921         

Total PERS Contributions Paid by the City 822,676$        929,472$        836,343$       

Fiscal Year

 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 
 
The City has no OPEB liability under GASB 45. 
 
D.  GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED, NOT YET IN EFFECT 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements that have future 
effective dates that may impact future financial presentations. 
 
Management has not currently determined what, if any, impact implementation of the following statements may 
have on future financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 54 "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions", issued February, 
2009 will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. The Statement establishes 
new classifications for fund equity and new definitions for governmental fund types. 
 
E.  OVEREXPENDITURE OF APPROPRIATIONS 
 
Oregon law prohibits expenditures in excess of Council-approved appropriations. The City had the following over-
expenditures of appropriations during the current year. 

 
General Construction Fund

Personal services 15,487$            
Debt Service 14,999              
Transfers Out 200,000            

Debt Service
Debt Service 370                   

Urban Renewal Agency Fund
Personal services 8,042                 

 
F.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The City adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 165, "Subsequent 
Events" (ASC 855).  ASC 855 establishes new accounting and disclosure requirements for subsequent events.  
Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 19, 2010, the date on which the financial 
statements were available to be issued.  Management is not aware of any subsequent events that require recognition 
or disclosure in the financial statements. 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 50 of 93

58



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 51 of 93

59



 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 52 of 93

60



 

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 53 of 93

61



 

- 41 - 

 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
Taxes

Property 4,091,784$       4,091,784$       4,035,588$     (56,196)$         
Franchise 1,464,071         1,464,071         1,578,593       114,522          
Other taxes 7,500                7,500                3,954              (3,546)             

Licenses and permits 81,500              81,500              83,009            1,509              
Intergovernmental

Federal grants 259,000            259,000            47,518            (211,482)         
State grants 36,200              36,200              6,152              (30,048)           
State shared revenue 342,000            342,000            327,830          (14,170)           
County 703,381            703,381            713,847          10,466            
Other intergovernmental 160,322            160,322            219,705          59,383            

Charges for services
Building permit fees 373,000            373,000            163,287          (209,713)         
Planning 99,352              99,352              34,523            (64,829)           
Culture and recreation 140,000            140,000            210,509          70,509            
Other charges for services 39,250              39,250              57,419            18,169            

Infrastructure development fees
SDCs and TIF 1,000                1,000                623                 (377)                
Utility connection fees 11,000              11,000              6,011              (4,989)             
Project plan review and inspection 166,350            166,350            107,761          (58,589)           

Fines, finance charges, and forfeitures 496,252            496,252            347,328          (148,924)         
Interest 27,000              27,000              13,855            (13,145)           
Other revenue 198,710            198,710            271,978          73,268            
Total revenue 8,697,672         8,697,672         8,229,490       (468,182)         

EXPENDITURES

Administration
Personal services

Salaries and wages 862,942            862,942            896,207          (33,265)           
Payroll taxes 81,026              81,026              88,094            (7,068)             
Benefits 298,335            298,335            306,424          (8,089)             

Materials and services
Professional and technical services 180,660            180,660            164,753          15,907            
Facility and equipment 164,750            164,750            143,831          20,919            
Other purchased services 481,982            481,982            298,989          182,993          
Supplies 14,730              14,730              15,705            (975)                
Community activities 3,150                3,150                2,607              543                 
Minor equipment purchases 55,000              55,000              72,277            (17,277)           
Other materials and services (1,763,775)        (1,763,775)        (1,679,431)      (84,344)           

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 54 of 93

62



 

- 42 - 

 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

 
Capital outlay

Infrastructure -$                  -$                  14,045$          (14,045)$         
Furniture and equipment 100,000            100,000            89,020            10,980            

Debt service
Principal 92,750              92,750              92,750            -                      
Interest 44,260              44,260              44,259            1                     

Total expenditures 615,810            615,810            549,530          66,280            

Community Development
Personal services

Salaries and wages 587,328            587,328            601,936          (14,608)           
Payroll taxes 62,068              62,068              52,687            9,381              
Benefits 190,060            190,060            207,352          (17,292)           

Materials and services
Professional and technical services 286,850            286,850            211,224          75,626            
Facility and equipment 4,500                4,500                8,760              (4,260)             
Other purchased services 36,112              36,112              13,256            22,856            
Supplies 5,220                5,220                3,916              1,304              
Community activities 150                   150                   75                   75                   
Minor equipment purchases 28,440              28,440              6,334              22,106            
Other materials and services 96,106              96,106              168,458          (72,352)           

Total expenditures 1,296,834         1,296,834         1,273,998       22,836            

Public Safety
Personal services

Salaries and wages 1,676,878         1,676,878         1,709,544       (32,666)           
Payroll taxes 226,293            226,293            176,183          50,110            
Benefits 603,151            603,151            570,611          32,540            

Materials and services
Professional and technical services 177,000            177,000            173,803          3,197              
Facility and equipment 85,000              85,000              68,435            16,565            
Other purchased services 43,040              43,040              37,563            5,477              
Supplies 44,500              44,500              34,092            10,408            
Community activities 2,500                2,500                2,175              325                 
Minor equipment purchases 14,500              14,500              58,851            (44,351)           
Other materials and services 900,987            900,987            864,863          36,124            

Capital outlay
Infrastructure -                        -                        10,000            (10,000)           
Vehicles 40,360              40,360              35,101            5,259              
Furniture and equipment 275,000            275,000            373                 274,627          

Total expenditures 4,089,209         4,089,209         3,741,594       347,615          

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 55 of 93

63



 

- 43 - 

 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Community Services
Personal services

Salaries and wages 596,651$          596,651$          626,418$        (29,767)$         
Payroll taxes 59,473              59,473              52,594            6,879              
Benefits 181,990            181,990            199,374          (17,384)           

Materials and services
Professional and technical services 65,582              65,582              48,122            17,460            
Facility and equipment 2,500                2,500                4,006              (1,506)             
Other purchased services 25,870              25,870              14,862            11,008            
Supplies 132,075            132,075            118,684          13,391            
Community activities 35,000              35,000              31,866            3,134              
Minor equipment purchases 3,000                3,000                2,545              455                 
Other materials and services 320,225            320,225            318,360          1,865              

Debt service
Principal 21,923              21,923              21,923            -                      
Interest 3,079                3,079                3,079              -                      

Total expenditures 1,447,368         1,447,368         1,441,833       5,535              

Public Works Operations
Personal services

Salaries and wages 374,773            374,773            390,375          (15,602)           
Payroll taxes 55,109              55,109              40,644            14,465            
Benefits 167,390            167,390            139,156          28,234            

Materials and services
Professional and technical services 149,076            149,076            119,199          29,877            
Facility and equipment 447,608            447,608            344,853          102,755          
Other purchased services 27,972              27,972              11,123            16,849            
Supplies 114,940            114,940            95,707            19,233            
Community activities 10,708              10,708              2,897              7,811              
Minor equipment purchases 33,800              33,800              14,857            18,943            
Other materials and services (488,155)           (488,155)           (367,651)         (120,504)         

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 30,000              30,000              -                      30,000            
Vehicles 25,000              25,000              -                      25,000            
Furniture and equipment 27,000              27,000              15,447            11,553            

Debt service
Principal 21,923              21,923              21,923            -                      
Interest 3,079                3,079                3,079              -                      

Total expenditures 1,000,223         1,000,223         831,609          168,614          

Total expenditures 8,449,444         8,449,444         7,838,564       610,880          

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 56 of 93

64



 

- 44 - 

 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 370,000$          370,000$          372,367$        2,367$            
Transfers out (11,500)             (89,000)             (49,252)           39,748            
Sale of capital assets 135,000            135,000            250,000          115,000          
Contingency (1,792,198)        (1,714,698)        -                      1,714,698       

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,298,698)        (1,298,698)        573,115          1,871,813       
Net change in fund balances (1,050,470)        (1,050,470)        964,041          2,014,511       

Fund balances - beginning 1,050,470         1,050,470         898,753          (151,717)         
Fund balances - ending -$                      -$                      1,862,794$     1,862,794$     

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 57 of 93

65



 

- 45 - 

 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
Charges for services

Other charges for services -$             -$             27,549$       27,549$         
Infrastructure development fees
Interest 9,000           9,000           2,534           (6,466)           
Other revenue -                   -                   (57,715)        (57,715)         
Total revenue 9,000           9,000           (27,632)        (36,632)         

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay

Infrastructure -                   -                   50,000         (50,000)         
Buildings 50,000         50,000         -                   50,000           

Total expenditures 50,000         50,000         50,000         -                    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 130,004       130,004       130,004       -                    

Total other financing sources (uses) 130,004       130,004       130,004       -                    
Net change in fund balances 89,004         89,004         52,372         (36,632)         

Fund balances - beginning 326,787       326,787       353,625       26,838           
Fund balances - ending 415,791$     415,791$     405,998$     (9,794)$         

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Asset Depreciation Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 58 of 93

66



 

- 46 - 

 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

                            
REVENUES

Taxes 2,888,302$       2,888,302$       3,019,360$    131,058$       
Charges for services

Other charges for services -                    -                    42,081           42,081           
Interest 50,000              50,000              21,603           (28,397)          
Other revenue 1,200                1,200                24,222           23,022           
Total revenue 2,939,502         2,939,502         3,107,266      167,764         

EXPENDITURES
Personal services

Salaries and wages 110,103            110,103            116,886         (6,783)            
Payroll taxes 10,151              10,151              9,866             285                
Benefits 34,284              34,284              35,828           (1,544)            

Total personal services 154,538            154,538            162,580         (8,042)            
Materials and services

Professional and technical services 305,000            305,000            403,938         (98,938)          
Facility and equipment -                        -                        6,807             (6,807)            
Other purchased services 19,667              19,667              18,708           959                
Supplies 2,000                2,000                2,576             (576)               
Community activities 150,000            150,000            27,464           122,536         
Other materials and services 84,093              84,093              83,347           746                

560,760            560,760            542,840         17,920           
Capital outlay

Land 135,000            135,000            577,299         (442,299)        
Infrastructure 8,638,750         8,638,750         2,172,072      6,466,678      

8,773,750         8,773,750         2,749,371      6,024,379      
Debt service

Principal 911,000            911,000            911,016         (16)                 
Interest 858,269            858,269            723,198         135,071         

1,769,269         1,769,269         1,634,214      135,055         
Total expenditures 11,258,317       11,258,317       5,089,005      6,169,312      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term debt 8,500,000         8,500,000         1,000,000      (7,500,000)     

Total other financing sources (uses) 8,500,000         8,500,000         1,000,000      (7,500,000)     
Net change in fund balances 181,185            181,185            (981,739)        (1,162,924)     

Fund balances - beginning 362,561            362,561            2,792,650      2,430,089      
Fund balances - ending 543,746$          543,746$          1,810,913$    1,267,165$    

Total materials and services

Total capital outlay

Total debt service

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Urban Renewal Agency General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 59 of 93

67



 

 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 60 of 93

68



 

 

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 61 of 93

69



 

 
- 47 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
Intergovernmental

Other intergovernmental 519,870$     519,870$     291,317$      (228,553)$      
Infrastructure development fees

SDC's and TIF 270,000       270,000       124,903        (145,097)        
Interest 1,650           1,650           4,700            3,050             
Other revenue 30,000         30,000         18,249          (11,751)          
Total revenue 821,520       821,520       439,169        (382,351)        

EXPENDITURES
Personal services

Salaries and wages 24,188         24,188         34,902          (10,714)          
Payroll taxes 2,571           2,571           2,888            (317)               
Benefits 7,707           7,707           12,163          (4,456)            

Total personal services 34,466         34,466         49,953          (15,487)          
Materials and services

Professional and technical services -                   62,500         -                    62,500           
Other purchased services 151              151              200               (49)                 
Other materials and services 28,584         28,584         36,399          (7,815)            

28,735         91,235         36,599          54,636           
Capital outlay

Infrastructure 322,772       865,772       521,989        343,783         
322,772       865,772       521,989        343,783         

Debt service
Principal 522,250       522,250       522,250        -                     
Interest 17,050         17,050         32,049          (14,999)          

539,300       539,300       554,299        (14,999)          
Total expenditures 925,273       1,530,773    1,162,840     367,933         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 11,500         89,000         49,252          (39,748)          
Transfers out -                   -                   (200,000)       (200,000)        

Total other financing sources (uses) 11,500         89,000         (150,748)       (239,748)        
Net change in fund balances (92,253)        (620,253)      (874,419)       (254,166)        

Fund balances - beginning 100,566       100,566       959,507        858,941         
Fund balances - ending 8,313$         (519,687)$    85,089$        604,775$       

Total materials and services

Total capital outlay

Total debt service

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Construction Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 62 of 93

70



 

 
- 48 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
Taxes

Property 916,700$     916,700$     916,779$     79$                
Interest 2,000           2,000           824              (1,176)           
Total revenue 918,700       918,700       917,603       (1,097)           

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 670,000       670,000       670,000       -                    
Interest 265,700       265,700       266,070       (370)              

Total expenditures 935,700       935,700       936,070       (370)              

Net change in fund balances (17,000)        (17,000)        (18,467)        (1,467)           

Fund balances - beginning 17,543         17,543         27,999         10,456           
Fund balances - ending 543$            543$            9,532$         8,989$           

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 63 of 93

71



 

 
- 49 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
Intergovernmental

Other intergovernmental 2,000,000$       2,000,000$       -$                  (2,000,000)$       
Charges for services

Utility charges for services 4,285,212         4,285,212         3,771,112         (514,100)            
Other charges for services 1,600                1,600                2,443                843                    

Infrastructure development fees
SDC's and TIF 250,000            250,000            113,258            (136,742)            
Utility connection fees 20,000              20,000              6,850                (13,150)              
Project plan review and inspection -                        -                        68                     68                      

Interest 470,398            470,398            56,529              (413,869)            
Other revenue -                        -                        1,152,492         1,152,492          
Total revenue 7,027,210         7,027,210         5,102,752         (1,924,458)         

EXPENDITURES
Operations

Personal services
Salaries and wages 393,018            452,618            450,991            1,627                 
Payroll taxes 51,823              51,823              44,922              6,901                 
Benefits 161,716            161,716            168,043            (6,327)                

Materials and services
Professional and technical services 571,472            740,472            763,282            (22,810)              
Facility and equipment 142,440            161,440            93,516              67,924               
Other purchased services 337,721            345,121            284,628            60,493               
Supplies 137,428            137,428            82,576              54,852               
Minor equipment purchases 39,000              39,000              10,583              28,417               
Other materials and services 210,934            210,934            219,617            (8,683)                

Capital outlay
Vehicles 15,000              15,000              -                        15,000               
Furniture and equipment 6,000                6,000                4,995                1,005                 

Debt service
Principal 221,440            221,440            41,758              179,682             
Interest 457,244            457,244            217,398            239,846             

Total expenditures 2,745,236         3,000,236         2,382,309         617,927             

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Water Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 64 of 93

72



 

 
- 50 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Water Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis

Capital
Personal services

Salaries and wages 89,950$            89,950$            45,162$            44,788$             
Payroll taxes 10,604              10,604              3,661                6,943                 
Benefits 29,783              29,783              14,633              15,150               

Materials and services
Professional and technical services -                        -                        7,095,341         (7,095,341)         
Facility and equipment -                        -                        9,881                (9,881)                
Other purchased services 1,267                1,267                15,701              (14,434)              
Supplies -                        -                        21,547              (21,547)              
Minor equipment purchases -                        -                        1,159                (1,159)                
Other materials and services 48,277              48,277              20,496              27,781               

Capital outlay
Land -                        -                        17,634              (17,634)              
Infrastructure 9,758,681         9,758,681         -                        9,758,681          

Debt service
Principal 10,000,000       10,000,000       -                        10,000,000        
Interest -                        -                        63,539              (63,539)              
Other -                        -                        1,500                (1,500)                

Total expenditures 19,938,562       19,938,562       7,310,254         12,628,308        

Total expenditures before reimbursements 22,683,798       22,938,798       9,692,563         13,246,235        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 210,013            210,013            538,013            328,000             
Transfers out (365,004)           (365,004)           (35,004)             330,000             
Issuance of long-term debt 16,000,000       16,000,000       3,152,556         (12,847,444)       

Total other financing sources (uses) 15,845,009       15,845,009       3,655,565         (12,189,444)       
Net change in fund balances 188,421            (66,579)             (934,246)           (867,667)            

Fund balances - beginning 7,659,790         7,659,790         8,705,626         1,045,836          
Fund balances - ending 7,848,211$       7,593,211$       7,771,380$       178,169$           

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 65 of 93

73



 

 
- 51 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
Intergovernmental

Other intergovernmental 737,260$        737,260$        -$               (737,260)$       
Charges for services

Utility charges for services 487,105          487,105          455,693         (31,412)           
Other charges for services -                      -                      647                647                  

Infrastructure development fees
SDC's and TIF 200,000          200,000          8,159             (191,841)         
Project plan review and inspection 1,000              1,000              172                (828)                

Interest 23,200            23,200            25,068           1,868               
Other revenue -                      -                      65,543           65,543             
Total revenue 1,448,565       1,448,565       555,282         (893,283)         

EXPENDITURES
Operations

Personal services
Salaries and wages 117,697          117,697          101,490         16,207             
Payroll taxes 15,279            15,279            10,805           4,474               
Benefits 43,309            43,309            31,561           11,748             

Materials and services
Professional and technical services 45,780            45,780            10,199           35,581             
Facility and equipment 23,640            23,640            11,519           12,121             
Other purchased services 42,905            42,905            122,261         (79,356)           
Supplies 12,104            12,104            7,476             4,628               
Minor equipment purchases 9,580              9,580              2,444             7,136               
Other materials and services 63,168            63,168            50,762           12,406             

Capital outlay
Furniture and equipment 8,000              8,000              7,600             400                  

Debt service
Principal 33,406            33,406            39,670           (6,264)             
Interest 4,692              4,692              5,571             (879)                

Total expenditures 419,560          419,560          401,358         18,202             

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Sanitary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 66 of 93

74



 

 
- 52 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Sanitary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis

 
Capital

Personal services
Salaries and wages 92,971$          92,971$          73,494$         19,477$           
Payroll taxes 9,718              9,718              6,147             3,571               
Benefits 31,911            31,911            17,398           14,513             

Materials and services
Professional and technical services -                      -                      342,082         (342,082)         
Facility and equipment -                      -                      2,756             (2,756)             
Other purchased services 259                 259                 12,093           (11,834)           
Other materials and services 110,834          110,834          76,039           34,795             

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 406,217          406,217          -                     406,217           

Total expenditures 651,910          651,910          530,009         121,901           

Total expenditures 1,071,470       1,071,470       931,367         140,103           
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out (145,421)         (145,421)         (83,407)          62,014             
Total other financing sources (uses) (145,421)         (145,421)         (83,407)          62,014             

Net change in fund balances 231,674          231,674          (459,492)        (691,166)         
Fund balances - beginning 4,161,440       4,161,440       4,256,969      95,529             
Fund balances - ending 4,393,114$     4,393,114$     3,797,477$    (595,637)$       

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 67 of 93

75



 

 
- 53 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
Charges for services

Utility charges for services 1,350,103$       1,350,103$       1,330,431$    (19,672)$           
Infrastructure development fees

SDC's and TIF 150,000            150,000            13,263           (136,737)           
Utility connection fees 2,000                2,000                -                     (2,000)               
Project plan review and inspection 500                   500                   172                (328)                  

Interest 11,730              11,730              3,982             (7,748)               
Total revenue 1,514,333         1,514,333         1,347,848      (166,485)           

EXPENDITURES
Operations

Personal services
Salaries and wages 204,398            204,398            144,238         60,160              
Payroll taxes 30,673              30,673              17,704           12,969              
Benefits 76,143              76,143              44,719           31,424              

Materials and services
Professional and technical services 137,876            137,876            97,675           40,201              
Facility and equipment 24,312              24,312              12,746           11,566              
Other purchased services 97,309              97,309              77,181           20,128              
Supplies 21,104              21,104              15,721           5,383                
Minor equipment purchases 6,700                6,700                -                     6,700                
Other materials and services 109,701            109,701            75,476           34,225              

Debt service
Principal 135,776            135,776            135,728         48                     
Interest 22,168              22,168              21,335           833                   
Other -                        -                        5,684             (5,684)               

Total expenditures Operations 866,160            866,160            648,207         217,953            

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Storm Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 68 of 93

76



 

 
- 54 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Storm Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis

 
Capital

Personal services
Salaries and wages 72,703$            72,703$            13,675$         59,028$            
Payroll taxes 7,647                7,647                1,143             6,504                
Benefits 24,116              24,116              2,941             21,175              

Materials and services
Professional and technical services -                        -                        46,010           (46,010)             
Facility and equipment -                        -                        945                (945)                  
Other purchased services 259                   259                   1,133             (874)                  
Other materials and services 86,301              86,301              13,673           72,628              

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 13,580              13,580              -                 13,580              

Total expenditures Capital 204,606            204,606            79,520           125,086            

Total expenditures 1,070,766         1,070,766         727,727         343,039            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (475,421)           (475,421)           (541,788)        (66,367)             

Total other financing sources (uses) (475,421)           (475,421)           (541,788)        (66,367)             
Net change in fund balances (31,854)             (31,854)             78,333           110,187            

Fund balances - beginning 69,727              69,727              550,084         480,357            
Fund balances - ending 37,873$            37,873$            628,417$       590,544$          

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 69 of 93

77



 

 
- 55 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
Intergovernmental

State shared revenue 675,000$       675,000$       683,623$       8,623$             
County 65,000           65,000           65,484           484                  
Other intergovernmental 1,138,750      1,138,750      1,000,000      (138,750)         

Charges for services
Utility charges for services 356,000         356,000         311,009         (44,991)           
Other charges for services -                     -                     2,157             2,157               

Infrastructure development fees
SDC's and TIF 550,000         550,000         301,935         (248,065)         
Project plan review and inspection 500                500                110                (390)                

Interest 79,000           79,000           49,896           (29,104)           
Other revenue -                     -                     2,229             2,229               
Total revenue 2,864,250      2,864,250      2,416,443      (447,807)         

EXPENDITURES
Operations

Personal services
Salaries and wages 144,994         144,994         142,093         2,901               
Payroll taxes 24,268           24,268           16,513           7,755               
Benefits 52,575           52,575           48,389           4,186               

Materials and services
Professional and technical services 26,544           101,544         53,821           47,723             
Facility and equipment 321,758         321,758         302,787         18,971             
Other purchased services 14,780           24,780           24,367           413                  
Supplies 51,066           51,066           50,108           958                  
Minor equipment purchases 4,500             4,500             -                     4,500               
Other materials and services 77,819           77,819           62,568           15,251             

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 228,000         228,000         256,701         (28,701)           
Furniture and equipment 35,000           35,000           -                     35,000             

Debt service
Principal 79,340           79,340           41,758           37,582             
Interest 11,142           11,142           5,864             5,278               

Total expenditures Operations 1,071,786      1,156,786      1,004,969      151,817           

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Street Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 70 of 93

78



 

 
- 56 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Street Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget and Actual - on Budgetary Basis

 
Capital

Personal services
Salaries and wages 103,848$       103,848$       57,587$         46,261$           
Payroll taxes 10,968           10,968           4,788             6,180               
Benefits 32,587           32,587           17,885           14,702             

Materials and services
Professional and technical services -                     -                     359,075         (359,075)         
Facility and equipment -                     -                     2,318             (2,318)             
Other purchased services 259                259                6,603             (6,344)             
Other materials and services 122,415         122,415         54,542           67,873             

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 3,552,887      3,552,887      3,502             3,549,385        

Total expenditures Capital 3,822,964      3,822,964      506,300         3,316,664        

Total expenditures 4,894,750      4,979,750      1,511,269      3,468,481        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 395,000         395,000         2,986             (392,014)         
Transfers out (119,171)        (119,171)        (183,171)        (64,000)           

Total other financing sources (uses) 275,829         275,829         (180,185)        (456,014)         
Net change in fund balances (1,754,671)     (1,839,671)     724,989         2,564,660        

Fund balances - beginning 3,651,906      3,651,906      4,893,590      1,241,684        
Fund balances - ending 1,897,235$    1,812,235$    5,618,579$    3,806,344$      

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 71 of 93

79



 

 
- 57 - 

Variance from
Final Budget

Actual - Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUE
Intergovernmental

Other intergovernmental -$                 -$                 12,000         12,000$         
Charges for services

Utility charges for services 325,000       325,000       183,351       (141,649)        
Other charges for services -                   -                   3,448           3,448             

Interest -                   -                   229              229                
Total revenue 325,000       325,000       199,028       (125,972)        

EXPENDITURES
Personal services

Salaries and wages 62,390         62,390         12,504         49,886           
Payroll taxes 5,998           5,998           1,101           4,897             
Benefits 22,464         22,464         3,604           18,860           

Total personal services 90,852         90,852         17,209         73,643           
Materials and services

Professional and technical services 15,000         15,000         31,874         (16,874)          
Facility and equipment 20,000         20,000         42,003         (22,003)          
Other purchased services 50,979         50,979         43,163         7,816             
Supplies 15,000         15,000         63                14,937           
Minor equipment purchases -                   -                   7,235           (7,235)            
Other materials and services 33,485         33,485         4,561           28,924           

134,464       134,464       128,899       5,565             
Capital outlay

Infrastructure 100,000       100,000       22,010         77,990           
Furniture and equipment 15,000         15,000         -                   15,000           

115,000       115,000       22,010         92,990           
Total expenditures 340,316       340,316       168,118       172,198         

Net change in fund balances (15,316)        (15,316)        30,910         46,226           

Fund balances - beginning 35,558         35,558         25,342         (10,216)          
Fund balances - ending 20,242$       20,242$       56,252$       36,010$         

Total materials and services

Total capital outlay

Budgeted Amounts

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Telecommunications Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 72 of 93

80



 

 
- 58 - 

 
City of Sherwood, Oregon 

Schedule of Property Tax Transactions and Balances 
June 30, 2010 

 
City of Sherwood

Tax Year

2009-10 $ -                     $ 5,113,308      $ (142,886)        $ (4,827,878)     $ 142,545         

2008-09 148,803         -                     (2,150)            (93,111)          53,542           

2007-08 40,089           -                     (106)               (19,728)          20,256           

2006-07 14,549           -                     867                (10,256)          5,161             

2005-06 3,909             -                     295                (3,035)            1,170             

2004-05 1,643             -                     (314)               (224)               1,105             

Prior Years 2,534             -                     (305)               (357)               1,872             

Total $ 211,528         $ 5,113,308      $ (144,599)        $ (4,954,587)     $ 225,650         

Urban Renewal Agency

Tax Year

2009-10 $ -                     $ 3,124,291      $ (87,305)          $ (2,949,890)     $ 87,096           

2008-09 84,708           -                     (1,224)            (53,004)          30,480           

2007-08 21,251           -                     (56)                 (10,457)          10,737           

2006-07 6,321             -                     377                (4,456)            2,242             

2005-06 1,252             -                     95                  (972)               375                

2004-05 409                -                     (78)                 (56)                 275                

Prior Years 181                -                     281                (74)                 388                

Total $ 114,121         $ 3,124,291      $ (87,911)          $ (3,018,909)     $ 131,593         

Levy
Balances

Uncollected Interest,
Balances

Adjustments

Uncollected Interest,

Turnovers

Uncollected

June 30, 2010
2009-2010 Discounts & Balances

July 1, 2009

June 30, 2010

Uncollected

July 1, 2009 Levy Adjustments Turnovers
2009-2010 Discounts & Balances

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 73 of 93

81



 

 
- 

STATISTICAL SECTION

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 74 of 93

82



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 75 of 93

83



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 76 of 93

84



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 77 of 93

85



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 78 of 93

86



 

63 

 

Asset Urban
General Depreciation Renewal General Debt 

Fund Fund Agency Construction Service Total

1,862,794$  405,998$     1,810,913$  85,089$       9,532$         4,174,326$  
898,753       353,625       2,792,649    959,507       27,999         5,032,533    
352,774       293,942       1,185,706    711,230       142,389       2,686,041    

(900,143)      186,158       1,005,607    1,220,332    104,833       1,616,787    
(1,332,856)   178,580       516,792       1,901,993    10,990         1,275,499    

371,003       148,737       -               -               -               519,740       
1,478,838    121,111       -               -               -               1,599,949    
1,895,059    129,900       -               -               -               2,154,859    
1,290,676    -                   -               -               -               1,290,676    

396,878       -                   -               -               -               396,878       

City of Sherwood, Oregon

2002

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

Fiscal
Fiscal Year

General Governmental Fund Balance
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2001

Ended
June 30

2003

2010

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 79 of 93

87



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 80 of 93

88



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 81 of 93

89



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 82 of 93

90



 

67 

Fiscal Percentage
Year of Total

Ended Assessed Assessed
June 30 Taxpayer Type of Entity Value Value

Portland General Electric Utility 28,217,000$    2.5%
Jae Oregon, Inc Manufacturing 26,728,170      2.4%
Northwest Natural Gas Company Utility 25,707,730      2.3%
Argyle Capital LLC Fiduciary 23,999,450      2.1%
Lumber Products Manufacturing 22,977,365      2.0%
Retail Property Partners Commercial 16,900,160      1.5%
Mittleman Properties Real Estate 16,997,910      1.5%
Target Corporation Retail 14,988,297      1.3%
Verizon Communications Utility 14,822,500      1.3%
Bir Sunfield LLC Real Estate 13,985,910      1.2%

2010 205,324,492$  16.7%

2009 Top ten taxpayers 112,495,071$  9.2%
2008 Top ten taxpayers 104,819,000    8.5%
2007 Top ten taxpayers 101,771,833    9.0%
2006 Top ten taxpayers 89,371,562      8.8%
2005 Top ten taxpayers 85,106,693      9.1%
2004 Top ten taxpayers 85,187,357      9.9%

Source:  Washington County Assessment and Taxation

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Principal Taxpayers

Last Seven Fiscal Years

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 83 of 93

91



 

68 

Total assessed value 1,434,708,323$  

Debt limitation:  3% of total assessed value 43,041,250$       
Debt applicable to limitation:

General obligation bonds outstanding 6,365,000$      
Less amount available for repayment of general obligation bonds (9,532)

Total debt applicable to limitation 6,355,468
Legal debt margin 36,685,782$       

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

June 30, 2010

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 84 of 93

92



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 85 of 93

93



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 86 of 93

94



Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 87 of 93

95



 

72 

Average
Population Calendar Median Household City of Washington

July 1 (a) Year Age (b) Size (b) Sherwood (b) County (b)

2009 16,640     2009 32.1 2.80 32,525 30,900
2008 16,420     2008
2007 16,365     2007
2006 16,115     2006
2005 14,940     2005
2004 14,190     2004
2003 14,050     2003
2002 13,680     2002
2001 12,840     2001
2000 10,815     2000 31.5 2.77 25,793         24,969     

(a) Source:  Portland State University Center for Population Research and Census
(b) Source:  ESRI

Census data is only avaialable every ten years. Median age, average household size,
and per capita income is only available from the census report.

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita Income

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 88 of 93

96



 

73 

Fiscal Year
Ended Number of Number of

June 30 Permits Value Permits Value

2010 58                  3,667,582$    64                  6,763,315$    
2009 82                  52,920,675    66                  41,204,023    
2008 73                  46,277,307    67                  7,383,156      
2007 102                9,388,197      117                19,688,517    
2006 44                  1,583,056      221                47,326,363    
2005 1,099             25,097,289    606                67,506,532    
2004 1,090             17,522,668    300                67,134,145    
2003 824                15,386,561    254                53,333,606    
2002 891                14,429,746    285                51,336,528    
2001 987                41,718,367    325                51,000,496    

Source:  City of Sherwood Building Department

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Construction

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Commercial Construction Residential Construction

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 89 of 93

97



 

74 

Date of incorporation 1893
Form of government Council/Manager
Number of employees 109
Area of square miles 4.5

Miles of streets 50
Culture and recreation:

Senior / teen centers 2
Recreation centers 2
Acres of sports fields 61
Acres of maintained passive parks 67

Fire protection by Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue:
Number of stations in the City of Sherwood 1

Police protection:
Number of stations 1

Services provided by School District 88J:
Number of elementary schools in the City 4
Number of middle and high schools in the City 3

City of Sherwood, Oregon
Miscellaneous Statistics

June 30, 2010

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 90 of 93

98



 

 

COMPLIANCE SECTION

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 91 of 93

99



 

75 

 

 
475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, Oregon 97301 

(503) 581-7788 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 

 
Honorable Mayor and Members 
Of the City Council 
City of Sherwood, Oregon 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, Oregon  97140 
 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Sherwood, Oregon (the City) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated November 19, 2010.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-
000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion.   
 
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures 
which included, but were not limited to the following: 
 
y Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295). 
y Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment. 
y Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294). 
y Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law. 
y Programs funded from outside sources. 
y Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294). 
y Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C). 
y Accountability for collecting or receiving money by elected officials - no money was collected or 

received by elected officials. 
 
In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City was not in 
substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 92 of 93

100



 

76 

of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the 
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, except for over expenditure of appropriations 
as indicated in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a basis 
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial 
reporting. 
 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through 
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties. 
 
 
   GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C. 
   CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
 
   By:   
    Charles A. Swank, A Shareholder 
            November 19, 2010 

 

Resolution 2011-007, Exhibit A
January 18, 2011
Page 93 of 93

101



 DRAFT 

Resolution 2011-008 
January 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (12 pgs) 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-008 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 2011-004 TO CORRECT AN ERROR IN THE 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE TO  REFLECT 
THE CORRECT DOLLAR OF THE IGA  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution 2011-004 on January 4, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2011-004 approved an IGA with the City of Wilsonville for certain water 
system improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, during the Executive Session on January 4, 2011, the City Attorney informed the 
City Council that the IGA referenced an incorrect dollar amount and recommended the Council 
make an amendment in open session to correct the amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, after the Council adopted Resolution 2011-004, which included the IGA as Exhibit 
A, it was brought to the City’s attention the IGA Exhibit still referenced the incorrect dollar 
amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council now intends to re-adopt the IGA attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
corrected to reference the correct dollar amount of $7,313,833.00 as noted in page 1, Section B 
of the IGA. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Wilsonville attached 
hereto as Exhibit A is hereby adopted. 

Section 2: This Resolution is effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 18th day of January 2011. 
 
  
  _____________________ 
  Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________   
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

102



A}[ INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CTTIES OF
SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING CONSTRUCTION,
OWNERSHIP, AND OPERATION OF A METER VAULT SERVICE

CONNECTION OF THE BOECKMAN ROAD TO GRAHAMS FERRY
ROAD WATER TRANSMISSION LINE (SEGMENT 5A) WITH

SHER\ryOOD TRANSMISSION LINE SEGMENT 6 AND A
TRANSMISSION PIPELINE CONNECTION (SEGMENT 5B) FROM THE

METER VAULT TO WATER TRANSMISSION SEGMENT 5A

Updated DRAFT I)ecember 20,2010

This Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this _ day of

20ll,by and between the City of Sherwood, an Oregon Municipal Corporation ("Sherwood"),

and the City of Wilsonville, an Oregon Municipal Corporation ("Wilsonville"), referred to

collectively as ("the Parties").

Recitals

The Parties agree upon the following Recitals

A. TWHEREAS Tualatin Valley Water District (TVWD), Sherwood and Wilsonville

each own undivided ownership shares in the Willamette River Water Treatment Plant

("WRWTP") and appurtenances thereto from raw water intake through Segment 1 of f,rnished

water transmission. The WRWTP has a current designed capacity of 15 mgd. Sherwood,

through a capacity purchase from Tualatin Valley Water District ("TVWD"), owns l13 or 5 mgd

of that capacity, while Wilsonville owns 2/3 or 10 mgd of WRWTP capacity in addition to larger

capacity interests in other appurtenant facilities.

B. WHEREAS Sherwood and Wilsonville have collectively constructed Segments 2,

4, and 5A of 48 inch diameter water transmission lines within Wilsonville, which in conjunction

with the WRWTP and other facilities will jointly serve both cities with a perrnanent potable

water supply. Together these already constructed transmission facilities are 8,183 lf in length

and represent a present joint investment of S7,313,833.00. Sherwood and Wilsonville each own

ll2 of the capacity of Segment 2. Sherwood owns 2/3 of the capacity of Segments 4 and 54,

while Wilsonville owns the remaining l13 capacity of each.

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 1 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 103



C. WHEREAS Sherwood has constructed and owns 18,000 lf of 48 inch diameter

transmission (Segments 6-9) from a point near the terminus of Transmission Segment 5A and

continuing to a newly constructed Sherwood Reservoir (Snyder Park- 4 mgd capacity). The cost

of the construction of these Sherwood transmission facilities is estimated to be in excess of

S11,630,000. Construction of these transmission facilities has just been completed in December

2010 by Emery and Sons ("Emery"), Sherwood's General Contractor. Emery was also the

General Contractor for Sherwood for the Snyder Park Reservoir. Completion of construction of

these transmission segments had been estimated to occur in the spring of 2011. In order for

Sherwood to accept these facilities from Emery they need to be pressure tested and flushed, and

then maintained and refreshed with a required maximum amount of potable water (400 gpm).

The source of this water is from the WRWTP and the Water Distribution System of the City of

Wilsonville. A Temporary Water Supply Agreement is being contemporaneously negotiated

between the parties for the 400 gpm water for pressure testing and flushing.

D. WHEREAS it has been long recognized and agreed to by the Parties that the

collectively owned transmission linkage between the WRWTP and the City of Sherwood will not

occur until the 2500 lf of Segment 3 48 inch diameter transmission is constructed by Wilsonville.

This transmission project is a part of a significantly larger project involving the extension of

Kinsman Road from Barber Road to Boeckman Road, and the allied construction of sanitary and

storm lines. This Project also requires substantial Environmental Permitting because it traverses

wetlands, a FEMA established Floodway/Flood Plain, and Bonneville Power Administration

(BPA) transmission line. Presently completion is estimated by Wilsonville to occur in 2013 or

2014. This Project is now proceeding through Preliminary Design and Engineering. The Parties

will separately negotiate terms of an Agreement wherein Sherwood would front the costs relating

to the water transmission portion of this Project subject to Wilsonville reimbursement of its share

of watertransmission project costs. The Parties are also presently negotiating an Interim Water

Supply Agreement, which will involve temporary wheeling of surplus water to Sherwood of up

to 2.5 mgd of WRWTP potable water through Wilsonville distribution lines until such time as

Segment 3 is completed and on line. The Parties have commissioned Montgomery Watson

Harza,Inc. ("MWH") to perform a hydraulic capacity analysis of current facility capacity to

ensure the 2.5 mgd is in fact surplus to Wilsonville's ongoing and projected needs. These

Projects will be the subject of subsequent Agreements between the Parties.

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 2 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 104



E. WHEREAS the Parties have also negotiated successfully, in principal, the design

and proposed construction of a Meter Vault facility and appurtenant small segment of 48 inch

diameter transmission line (segment 5B), collectively referred to as the Meter Vault Project. The

Meter Vault Project will link Transmission Segments 5A and 6, provide required metering

facilities for surplus water flowing to Sherwood, and house pressure reducing valves and

transmission lines to serve Wilsonville's distribution and reservoir systems. Wilsonville will

issue bid notices for this project on or before January 15,2011. The Pafties will consider

adoption of this Project in an Agreement which will be available for consideration and adoption

by the Parties in January 2011. Completion of that Project is anticipated in June 2011.

Sherwood has tentatively agreed, subject to successful negotiation of contract terms, to advance

funding of its proportionate share of the Project as well as advance funding and construction of

the extension of a Wilsonville 24 inch diameter transmission line which will be a wholly owned

Wilsonville component of this Project. The terms of this Project are the subject of this

Agreement and the aforementioned Temporary Water Supply Agreement between the Parties.

F. WHEREAS the unanticipated early completion of Segments 6-9 of 48 inch

diameter transmission by Sherwood in December 2010 and the estimated completion of the

Meter Vault in June 2011 leaves a short but very important period when temporary water supply

to Sherwood in an amount not to exceed 400 gpm will be required as explained in Recital C

above. The Parties have developed a way to provide temporary water supply during this period

by the advance construction by Sherwood of a 24 inch diameter transmission line extension.

This transmission line extension previously was a part of the Meter Vault Project, referenced in

Recital E above, to serve Wilsonville permanently with potable water through the meter vault.

All required real property has been acquired by Wilsonville for the construction of this line

extension and its connection to Sherwood's Segment 6 transmission line. Sherwood has

proposed to pay for the redesign associated with advancing the 24 inch line extension and to

front costs for this Project subject to reimbursement of Wilsonville's share through credits

against future temporary and interim water sales to Sherwood.

G. WHEREAS Sherwood and Wilsonville agree to the design and construction of the

facilities of the Meter Vault Project under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 3 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 105



H. WHEREAS it is recognized by the Parties that it is necessary to enter into this

intergovernmental cooperative agreement through ORS Chapter 190 to provide for the property

acquisition, surveying, modeling geotechnical/environmental studies, permitting, telemetry

design, and construction, including inspection/Project management, ownership and maintenance

of the Meter Vault Project.

L WHEREAS the Parties have the authority to enter into this Agreement pursuant to

their applicable charter, principal acts, and ORS 190.003 - 190.030.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS

1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are incorporated by reference and made a

part of this Agreement.

2. Consideration. In consideration of the terms and conditions set forth below, the

Parties enter into this Agreement to design and construct the facilities of the Meter Vault Project

which will link transmission segments 5A and 6, provide required metering facilities and

transmission for water flowing to Sherwood, and house pressure reducing valves and

transmission to serve 'Wilsonville's distribution and reservoir systems. The facilities of the

Meter Vault Project are more particularly described in the project bid plans and specifrcations, a

copy of which have been provided to each party and which are incorporated by reference.

3. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be perpetual unless otherwise agreed to

by the Parties.

4. Reimbursement of Certain Wilsonville Expenses Previously Incurred.

Wilsonville has identified 599,902.88 of expenses previously incurred for design, right-of-way

acquisition, and staff time relating to the Meter Vault Project, which the Parties agree should be

reimbursed by Sherwood. Sherwood agrees, within hve (5) business days of the Parties'

execution of the Temporary Water Supply Agreement between the Parties, to remit this sum to

Wilsonville. Receipt of this remittance by Wilsonville will fully satisfy these previously

incurred obligations.

5. Meter Vault Property and Ownership. The real properties upon which the

Meter Vault Project are located is described in Exhibit A and incorporated by reference herein.

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 4 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 106



Wilsonville has advanced the costs of the acquisition, Level I appraisal and environmental

repoft, purchase price, and closing and escrow costs and staff and consultant time in the amount

of 534,898.00. Wilsonville obtained its fee interest by warranty deed. Upon payment by

Sherwood of the sum of 599,902.88 as more particularly described in section 4 above,

V/ilsonville agrees to grant to Sherwood a fifty percent (50%) undivided interest as tenants in

common by sufficient warranty deed consistent with the terms of the warranty deed it received.

6. Contract Estimated Costs and Award. The estimated cost for the construction

of the Meter Vault Project including surveying, inspection and construction management is

5962,545 net of 24 inch temporary water line extension addressed in Temporary Water Supply

Agreement between the parties. Those estimated costs are more particularly described in Exhibit

B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The Parties anticipate that Wilsonville

will issue bid notices for this Project on or before January 15, 201 l.

7. Contract Obligations and Payment. The estimated contract costs contained in

Exhibit B are broken down for each project element into percentage responsibility of benefit and

payment obligations and joint ownership of the Parties. Project elements 1-29 constitute the

jointly-owned and jointly-benefitted project elements as well as a24 inch diameter transmission

line with a12inch diameter by-pass (project element 28), which latter element is of exclusive

benefit to Sherwood and which will be exclusively owned by Sherwood upon the end of

construction. Project elements 30-42 and their respective costs are set out in a separate table in

Exhibit B. These project elements have permanent sole benefit to Wilsonville and ownership of

these project elements upon completion of construction will be that of Wilsonville. By separate

agreement (Temporary Water Supply Agreement) the Parties have agreed that Sherwood by

contract-change order will pay for the redesign and construct project elements 

- 
to 

-.Wilsonville will reimburse Sherwood for the costs of construction of those identified facilities as

provided in the Temporary Water Supply Agreement between the parties to be executed

contemporaneously herewith. Sherwood, within two (2) weeks of Wilsonville's award of a

contract for the construction of the Meter Vault Project, not including the Meter Vault Project

facilities constructed by Sherwood as above described, shall deposit'with Wilsonville an amount

equivalent to its proportionate monetary interest of the Meter Vault Project so bid and contracted

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 5 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 107



for by Wilsonville. Wilsonville shall be responsible for the remainder of Project costs so

contracted, subject to a true-up by the Parties at Project completion.

8. Change Orders. Sherwood shall be promptly notified in writing within seventy-

two (72) hours of any proposed contract change order that exceeds $10,000 or when the

aggregate of any change orders reach $50,000. Wilsonville shall not authorize any change order

that exceeds $10,000 or any change order or orders that in the aggregate would exceed $50,000 if
Sherwood has notified Wilsonville within seven (7) days of receipt of written notice that

Sherwood objects to the same. If the objection is not resolved within a reasonable period of

time, work may proceed subject to Sherwood's protest in dispute resolution rights set forth

below in section 16.

9. Capacity and Ownership of the Meter Vault and Appurtenant Facilities. The

Meter Vault Project facilities are intended to have an actual final peak design capacity of

30 mgd. Sherwood shall be entitled to a 67 percent (67%) capacity share thereof, and

Wilsonville the remaining 33 percent (33%) share thereof. Ownership means the right of each

party to use for its own benefit its portion of meter vault capacity. In the event that actual

operating design capacity exceeds 30 mgd, the supplemental capacity shall be owned by the

Parties in proportion to the above-referenced capacity shares. The respective capacity use of the

Parties will be metered by appropriate metering facilities. The aforementioned 24 inch

transmission extension line to be constructed in advance to serve the temporary water use for

hydraulic and biological testing and flushing, and then maintained and refreshed, is intended to

be 100% owned by Wilsonville as provided for in the Temporary Water Supply Agreement.

10. Operation and Maintenance Responsibilities. Unless otherwise agreed to by

the Parties in writing, Wilsonville shall have the responsibility for operation and maintenance of

the Meter Vault Project facilities. The actual, direct, out-of-pocket expenses of post-construction

operation and maintenance of the Project (together with any allowance as the Parties may agree

upon for general or administrative expenses) shall be billed to the Parties monthly in proportion

to their respective ownership interests as set out in Exhibit B. Each Party shall be solely

responsible for operation and maintenance for project elements for which they have 100 percent

(100%) ownership. The cost of operation and maintenance of jointly-owned project elements

shall be shared by the Parties based upon their respective ownership interests therein.

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 6 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 108



Wilsonville shall exercise due diligence in effecting its operation and maintenance

responsibilities under this Agreement. Any non-emergency maintenance project or event in

excess of $10,000 in total costs will require the coordination and consent of Sherwood.

Wilsonville shall ensure that all flow meters are maintained properly and calibrated

annually. Wilsonville shall be responsible for the reading of meters.

Subject to shut-down for emergencies, announced scheduled repairs, or precautionary

shut-down to allow upstream spills in the Willamette River to flow past the intake of the

WRWTP, Wilsonville shall operate the meter vault facilþ and appurtenances in a manner to not

harm Sherwood and to provide Sherwood's ownership capacity share at an adequate hydraulic

grade at the point of delivery to Sherwood. The point of delivery is defined as the revenue meter

located approximately 400 feet west of the intersection of southwest Grahams Ferry Road and

Tooze Road. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties, an adequate hydraulic grade at the point

of delivery to Sherwood shall be at a level sufficient to completely fill Sherwood's terminal

sunset reservoirs which have an overflow elevation of approximately 380 feet.

Should temporary conditions exist beyond the operational control of Wilsonville of the

V/RWTP which materially impact the ability of the WRWTP to produce sufficient water to meet

the demand of both cities, the available supply capacity of the WRWTP shall be split in

accordance with the respective ownership rights in capacity at the WRWTP. The

aforementioned is not intended to alter the respective ownership of capacity of Parties in the

meter vault facility and appurtenances. Neither city shall be responsible to meet the water

demands of the other.

Wilsonville shall be responsible for the control and supervision of all activities of the

Meter Vault Project and shall prepare and submit to Sherwood financial activity repofts of the

Project not less than annually and prepare such other reports and information as the Parties may

require and mutually agree upon.

11. Transmission of Water to Third Parties. Unless both parties otherwise

previously agree in writing, neither Party shall permit use of the Meter Vault Project for the

purpose of transmitting water to any person other than Wilsonville or Sherwood customers, save

and except a transfer by Sherwood of its ownership interest in the Meter Vault Project to the

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 7 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 109



Willamette River Water Coalition (WRWC). In the event of such a transfer to the WRWC by

Sherwood, the Project shall be jointly owned by Wilsonville and the WRWC. No other party

shall have any interest therein unless mutually agreed by the Parties. Subject to sections 14 and

15 below or as otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing, transmission of water by a Party

shall not exceed that Party's ownership share in the WRWTP.

12. Budget. Annually, and 150 days prior to the commencement of each Party's

ftscal year, Wilsonville shall prepare and distribute to each Party a forecast of anticipated costs

for the meter vault facility and appurtenances for that ensuing fiscal year and each Party shall

contribute its share of this amount in proportion to its ownership interests in the Project.

13. Non-Emergency Repair or Replacement. Wilsonville shall monitor the overall

condition of the meter vault facility and appurtenances and shall schedule any non-emergency

major repair or replacement two (2) years in advance of such major repair or replacement. At the

same time, Wilsonville shall prepare an estimated annual expenditure for the cost of the

scheduled repair or replacement. Upon preparation of the schedule and annual costs, Wilsonville

shall provide Sherwood a copy of the same.

14. Leasing of Supply Capacity. Each Party shall have the right to lease from the

other Party any unused capacity of that Party's capacity share of the meter vault facility and

appurtenances as the Party with the unused capacity may determine in its sole discretion to be

reasonably available and prudent to be leased to the other Party. The compensation to the

leasing Party shall be fairly and equitably agreed upon by the Parties.

15. Overuse of Project Facilities. Wilsonville and Sherwood shall each use the

meter vault facilities and appurtenances in a manner consistent with prudent water utility

practices and to minimize insofar as is practicable interference with each others use of its

respective share of capacity to meets its demand. Unless caused by system operation conditions

not caused by the overusing Party, any overuse of 10 percent (10%) or greater of either

Wilsonville or Sherwood for two (2) consecutive years or for three (3) out of five (5) consecutive

years shall result in the overusing Party compensating the other Party at a lease ratethat will be

fairly and equitably agreed upon by the Parties.

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 8 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 110



16. Dispute/Attorneys Fees. lf a dispute arises between the Parties regarding breach

of this Agreement or interpretation of any term of this Agreement, the Parties shall first attempt

to resolve the dispute by negotiation, followed by mediation and arbitration.

Step One: The respective City Managers of the Parties or their designees are designated

to negotiate on behalf of the Party each represents. If the dispute is resolved at this Step One,

there shall be a written determination of such resolution, signed by each Party's Manager and

ratified by each governing body, if required by the governing body, which shall be binding upon

the Parties. Step One will be deemed complete when a Party delivers notice in writing to the

other Parties that the Party desires to proceed to Step Two.

Step Two: If the dispute cannot be resolved within ten (10) days at Step One, or earlier

after written notice given by aparty, the Parties shall submit the matter to non-binding mediation

by a professional engineer with demonstrated substantial experience in the design, construction

and operation of complex municipal treatment, transmission, distribution, and storage systems.

The Parties shall attempt to agree on a mediator. If they cannot agree, the Parties shall request a

list of five (5) mediators from an entity or firm experienced in providing engineering mediation

services who do not have an existing professional relationship with either Party. The Parties will

mutually agree upon a mediator from the list provided. Any common costs of mediation shall be

borne equally by the Parties who shall each bear their own costs and fees. If the issue(s) is

resolved at this Step Two, a written determination of such resolution shall be signed by each

Manager and approved by their respective governing bodies, if necessary.

Step Three: If mediation does not resolve the issue within forty-five (45) days of

submission of the issue to mediation, the matter will be refered to binding arbitration by a panel

of three arbitrators who are professional engineers with demonstrated substantial experience in

the design, construction and operation of complex municipal treatment, transmission,

distribution, and storage systems. One arbitrator will be chosen by each Party and those two

arbitrators chosen will choose a third arbitrator. No panel member may have an on-going

professional relationship to either Party. The arbitration panel will reasonably endeavor to reach

a decision on the dispute within sixty (60) days of its submission to the panel. The decision shall

be binding on both Parties and there shall be no right of further appeal. The prevailing Party

shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys fees as shall be awarded by the arbitration panel.

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 9 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 111



17. Breach. If a Party defaults underthe terms of this Agreement, then upon twenty

(20) days wriffen notice, the defaulting Party shall undertake steps to commence cure of the

breach within a reasonable time, depending on the circumstances. In the event there is a dispute

over the amount to be paid, the undisputed amount shall be paid immediately and the Agreement

shall not be in default while the solution to the disputed payment portion is resolved under

Section 9. The Parties understand and agree that water service is critical to each Party's

customers and that monetary damages may be an insufficient remedy considering the

infrastructure involved. Therefore, the Palties expressly agree that equitable remedies such as

injunction or specific performance are specifically contemplated and allowed by this Agreement.

18. Notices. Notices regarding operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, breach,

termination, renewal or other issues shall be deemed sufficient if deposited in the United States

Mail, First Class, postage prepaid, addressed to the Parties as follows:

City Manager
City of Sherwood
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, OR 97140

City Manager
City of Wilsonville
29799 SW Town Center Loop E

Wilsonville, OR 97070

19. Insurance and Indemnity. To the full extent permitted by law, each Party

agrees to indemnifl, and hold harmless the other, its counsel, officers, employees, and agents

from any and all claims, demands, damages, actions, or other harm caused by the sole negligence

of that Party, including any attorneys fees or other costs of defense. Fufther, independent of the

indemnity obligation, each Party agrees to maintain general liability insurance in an amount not

less than Oregon Tort Claim limits applicable to public agencies as set forth in ORS 30.260 -
30.300.

20. Succession. This Agreement shall be binding upon any successors to the

respective Parties, which through merger, consolidation or other means, including a lawful

transfer by Sherwood to the Willamette River Water Coalition (WRWC), succeeds to the water

supply treatment and distribution and transmission functions of that Party.

21. Amendment. The terms of this Agreement may be amended or supplemented by

mutual agreement of the Parties. Any amendment or supplement shall be in writing and shall

refer specifrcally to this Agreement, and which shall be executed by the Parties.

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 10 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 112



22. Good Faith and Cooperation. The Parties agree and represent to each other

good faith, complete cooperation, and due diligence in the performance in all obligations of the

Parties pursuant to this Agreement.

23. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Oregon

24. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in two (2) counterparts, each of

which shall be deemed as an original and, when taken together, shall constitute one (l) and the

same agreement.

25. Mutual Indemnification. 'Wilsonville shall indemnifo Sherwood as may be

allowed for any and all claims by third parties against Sherwood arising out of the negligence or

intentional acts of Wilsonville, its officials, employees, agents, contractors, or assigns.

Sherwood shall indemnifo Wilsonville as may be allowed for any and all claims by third parties

against Sherwood arising out of the negligence or intentional acts of Wilsonville, its officials,

employees, agents, contractors, or assigns.

26. Instruments of Further Assurance. From time to time, at the request of either

Party, each Party shall, without further consideration, execute and deliver such funher

instruments and shall take such further action as may be reasonably required to fully effectuate

the purposes of this Agreement.

27. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this

Agreement shall be judicially deemed invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the

validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein shall not in any

way be affected or impaired thereby.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have, pursuant to official action of their respective

governing bodies duly authorizing the same, caused their respective officers to execute this

Agreement on their behalf.

CITY OF'' SHERWOOD
An Oregon municipal corporation

CITY OF WILSONVILLE
An Oregon municipal corporation

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 11 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 113



APPROYED AS TO X'ORM APPROVED AS TO FORM

Resolution 2011-008
January 18, 2011
Page 12 of 12, Exhibit A (12 pgs) 114



Resolution 2011-009, Staff Report 
January 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 1, with attached design (3 pgs) 

 Council Meeting Date: January 18, 2011 
 
 Agenda Item: New Business  
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Kristen Switzer, Community Services Director  
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2011-009, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

ENTER INTO AN INTERSTATE COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT FOR 
PREFABRICATED RESTROOMS FOR STELLA OLSEN PARK  

 
ISSUE:   Should the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement to purchase 

prefabricated restrooms for Stella Olsen Park? 
 
BACKGROUND: In 2006 electors of Metro approved Ballot Measure 26-80 authorizing Metro to issue $227.4 
million in bonds to preserve natural areas, clean water and protect fish and wildlife. The measure provided that 
$44 million from bond proceeds be expended by local parks providers for specified projects. The City of 
Sherwood is to receive funding in the amount of $446,744 for projects as specified in the measure including the 
parking lot and restrooms at Stella Olsen Park. In 2009 the Stella Olsen parking lot was built and the Metro 
Local Share dollars paid for $286,317 of the project.  
 
Staff has been working to develop the most efficient method to provide a restroom building in Stella Olsen 
Park. We compared a standard site-built building to other potential options and determined the installation 
of a modular or prefabricated building of equivalent construction, design and materials at this park will be 
the most cost efficient way to go. Originally we had estimated that a design/build would cost approximately 
$375,538. Based on our ability to piggyback on an existing publicly bid governmental contract for a 
prefabricated building we have negotiated a price that will bring the total project cost down to $224,846. We 
have also been able to negotiate several “upgrades” including a urinal in the family restroom, LED lighting, 
exposed block as opposed to painted, and a covered porch. All of these upgrades will improve the 
functionality, feel and look of the building.  
 
The Parks Board met on Monday, January 3, 2011 and reviewed the attached design for the restrooms and 
recommended unanimously that the remaining $160,428 of the Metro Local Share be used to fund the cost 
for the restrooms at Stella Olsen Park and the rest of the project be funded out of Park SDCs. The restrooms 
have been at the top of the priority list for the Parks Board since the Stella Olsen Park Master Plan was 
adopted in 2008. 
 
This purchase is being done from an interstate cooperative purchasing agreement so staff has worked 
closely with the City Attorney’s office to assure that the right procurement rules were used for this purchase. 
Those contracting rules allow purchasing through an interstate cooperative procurement when the bidding 
process for the original underlying award was open, impartial and competitive and substantially equivalent 
to the process specified in ORS 279B.055 or ORS 279B.060. These statutes require public notice of the 
intent to award a contract and the City has published that notice.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: The cost for the building will be $165,670. The total project cost, including site prep 
and bringing in the utilities is approximately $224,846. Seventy percent of the cost of the project will be from 
Metro Local Share dollars and the other thirty percent will come from Park SDCs.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVE RESOLUTION 2011-009, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN INTERSTATE COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT FOR 
PREFABRICATED RESTROOMS FOR STELLA OLSEN PARK. 

115



22' - 8" BUILDING

20
' -

 0
" B

U
IL

D
IN

G

UTILITY
CHASE

WOMENS MENS

12' - 0" MOD. 'A'12' - 0" MOD. 'B'

24' - 0" ROOF

21
' -

 4
" R

O
O

F

O
VE

R
H

AN
G

6'
 - 

0"

FAMILY

(F
IE

LD
 IN

ST
AL

LE
D

)

DRAWN BY:COPYRIGHT 2010, PUBLIC RESTROOM
COMPANY THIS MATERIAL IS THE EXCLUSIVE
PROPERTY OF PUBLIC RESTROOM COMPANY
AND SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED, USED, OR
DISCLOSED TO OTHERS EXCEPT AS
AUTHORIZED BY THE WRITTEN PERMISSION
OF PUBLIC RESTROOM COMPANY.

Designing And Building Restrooms...Better

PROJECT:

BUILDING TYPE:

PUBLIC
RESTROOM
COMPANY

Ph. 888-888-2060  Fax 888-888-1448

REVISION BY:
REVISION DATE:

DATE:

PROJECT #:

MAXIMUM PERSON AN HOUR:

#:

~NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION ~ PRELIMINARY DESIGN DRAWING  ONLY ~ DO NOT SCALE, DIMENSIONS PRESIDE

Z:
\P

 A
 R

 K
  F

IL
ES

\O
R

EG
O

N
\S

H
E

R
W

O
O

D
\S

TE
LL

A 
O

LS
E

N
 M

EM
O

R
IA

L 
PA

R
K

 #
81

73
\D

es
ig

n\
S

TA
G

E_
1 

PR
EL

IM
S 

(P
R

C
)\C

U
R

R
E

N
T\

10
11

30
-P

R
E

LI
M

-S
TE

LL
A 

O
LS

E
N

 M
E

M
O

R
IA

L
P

A
R

K
-O

PT
 3

.rv
t

8173

STELLA OLSEN MEMORIAL PARK
SHERWOOD, OR.

11/2/10
PEF

255
RESTROOM BUILDING

M

 3/16" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN

PEF
12/7/10 3

116



MENSUTILITY CHASEWOMENS

11
' -

 1
1 

9/
32

"

4
12

T.O. SLAB
0' - 0"

T.O. WALL
7' - 4"

FAMILY

4
12

SIDEWALK BY OTHERS

DRAWN BY:COPYRIGHT 2010, PUBLIC RESTROOM
COMPANY THIS MATERIAL IS THE EXCLUSIVE
PROPERTY OF PUBLIC RESTROOM COMPANY
AND SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED, USED, OR
DISCLOSED TO OTHERS EXCEPT AS
AUTHORIZED BY THE WRITTEN PERMISSION
OF PUBLIC RESTROOM COMPANY.

Designing And Building Restrooms...Better

PROJECT:

BUILDING TYPE:

PUBLIC
RESTROOM
COMPANY

Ph. 888-888-2060  Fax 888-888-1448

REVISION BY:
REVISION DATE:

DATE:

PROJECT #:

MAXIMUM PERSON AN HOUR:

#:

~NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION ~ PRELIMINARY DESIGN DRAWING  ONLY ~ DO NOT SCALE, DIMENSIONS PRESIDE

Z:
\P

 A
 R

 K
  F

IL
ES

\O
R

EG
O

N
\S

H
E

R
W

O
O

D
\S

TE
LL

A 
O

LS
E

N
 M

EM
O

R
IA

L 
PA

R
K

 #
81

73
\D

es
ig

n\
S

TA
G

E_
1 

PR
EL

IM
S 

(P
R

C
)\C

U
R

R
E

N
T\

10
11

30
-P

R
E

LI
M

-S
TE

LL
A 

O
LS

E
N

 M
E

M
O

R
IA

L
P

A
R

K
-O

PT
 3

.rv
t

8173

STELLA OLSEN MEMORIAL PARK
SHERWOOD, OR.

11/2/10
PEF

255
RESTROOM BUILDING

M

 3/16" = 1'-0"1 FRONT ELEVATION

PEF
12/7/10 3

 3/16" = 1'-0"2 RIGHT ELEVATION

117



DRAWN BY:COPYRIGHT 2010, PUBLIC RESTROOM
COMPANY THIS MATERIAL IS THE EXCLUSIVE
PROPERTY OF PUBLIC RESTROOM COMPANY
AND SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED, USED, OR
DISCLOSED TO OTHERS EXCEPT AS
AUTHORIZED BY THE WRITTEN PERMISSION
OF PUBLIC RESTROOM COMPANY.

Designing And Building Restrooms...Better

PROJECT:

BUILDING TYPE:

PUBLIC
RESTROOM
COMPANY

Ph. 888-888-2060  Fax 888-888-1448

REVISION BY:
REVISION DATE:

DATE:

PROJECT #:

MAXIMUM PERSON AN HOUR:

#:

~NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION ~ PRELIMINARY DESIGN DRAWING  ONLY ~ DO NOT SCALE, DIMENSIONS PRESIDE

Z:
\P

 A
 R

 K
  F

IL
ES

\O
R

EG
O

N
\S

H
E

R
W

O
O

D
\S

TE
LL

A 
O

LS
E

N
 M

EM
O

R
IA

L 
PA

R
K

 #
81

73
\D

es
ig

n\
S

TA
G

E_
1 

PR
EL

IM
S 

(P
R

C
)\C

U
R

R
E

N
T\

10
11

30
-P

R
E

LI
M

-S
TE

LL
A 

O
LS

E
N

 M
E

M
O

R
IA

L
P

A
R

K
-O

PT
 3

.rv
t

8173

STELLA OLSEN MEMORIAL PARK
SHERWOOD, OR.

11/2/10
PEF

255
RESTROOM BUILDING

M

1 AXONOMETRIC

2 PERSPECTIVE
PEF

12/7/10 3

Actual Color

118



DRAFT 

Resolution 2011-009 
January 18, 2011 
Page 1 of 1  

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-009 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO AN INTERSTATE COOPERATIVE 
PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT FOR PREFABRICATED RESTROOMS FOR STELLA OLSEN PARK  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood will use Metro Local Share funds in the amount of $160,428 to install 
restrooms at Stella Olsen Park; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City will contribute additional funding totaling $64,418 for the installation of bathrooms at 
Stella Olsen Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, state contracting rules allow purchasing through an interstate cooperative procurement 
when the bidding process for the original underlying award was open, impartial and competitive and 
substantially equivalent to the process specified in ORS 279B.055 or ORS 279B.060; and 
 
WHEREAS, the underlying award bidding process meets the criteria set forth under state law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the vendor is offering its goods and services to the City at the same unit pricing and same 
general terms and conditions as required by the underlying award; and     
 
WHEREAS, the City has published notice pursuant to ORS 279B.055(4)(b) and (c) to allow for the 
submission of comments regarding the intent to establish a contract through an interstate cooperative 
procurement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City did not receive comments on its intent to establish a contract through an interstate 
cooperative procurement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract with The Public Restroom 

Company through an interstate cooperative procurement agreement in the amount of 
$165,670 for the purchase of prefabricated restrooms for Stella Olsen Park. 

 
Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  
  
Duly passed by the City Council this 18th day of January 2011. 
 
 
        _________________________ 
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

119



November-10
Est. Est.

Usage People People 
Count Served Count Served

Leagues 7 964 11 2440
Rentals 117 3276 251 8064
Other (Classes) 1 6 2 18
[1]  Day Use 12 96 28 144

Total Usage 4342 10666

FY 10-11
Income Nov-10 YTD
Rentals $7,123.50 $20,017.00
League fees (indoor) $16,105.00 $35,321.00
Card fees (indoor) $1,280.00 $2,030.00
Day Use $190.00 $281.00
Merchandise
Snacks $716.00 $1,721.50
Classes $35.00 $875.00
Total Income $25,449.50 $60,245.50

FY 09‐10
Income Nov-09 YTD

Rentals $5,183.00 $10,664.50
League fees (indoor) $22,275.00 $38,482.00
Card fees (indoor) $2,415.07 $2,714.07
Day Use $118.00 $181.00
Merchandise
Snacks $500.75 $1,028.00
Classes $140.00
Rental collected by 
Finance Dept

Total Income $30,491.82 $53,209.57

Field House
Monthly Report November  10

Nov-10 YTD

120



December-10
Est. Est.

Usage People People 
Count Served Count Served

Leagues 7 964 18 3404
Rentals 81 2106 332 10170
Other (Classes) 1 6 2 24
[1]  Day Use 8 117 36 261

Total Usage 3193 13859

FY 10-11
Income Dec-10 YTD
Rentals $5,329.00 $25,346.00
League fees (indoor) $3,356.00 $38,677.00
Card fees (indoor) $239.00 $2,269.00
Day Use $231.00 $512.00
Merchandise
Snacks $712.25 $2,433.75
Classes $210.00 $1,085.00
Total Income $10,077.25 $70,322.75

FY 09‐10
Income Dec-09 YTD

Rentals $3,525.00 $14,189.50
League fees (indoor) $1,640.00 $40,122.00
Card fees (indoor) $519.00 $3,233.07
Day Use $101.00 $282.00
Merchandise
Snacks $571.00 $1,599.00
Classes $280.00 $420.00
Rental collected by 
Finance Dept

Total Income $6,636.00 $59,845.57

Field House
Monthly Report December  10

Dec-10 YTD

121



Active Rec happenings during the month of November 2010 

Youth football has finished up they had at least seven teams make the playoffs. 

All of the fall sports have finished up we still have one soccer team playing. 

Youth basketball is in full swing with 48 Rec teams 3rd to 8th grade 17 classic or competitive teams and 7 
Rec High school teams for a total of 72 youth basketball teams. 

That is 161 practices per week and over 800 games in a ten week season. 

So needless to say we have all of the school district gyms in use until 9:30pm each night. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted  

December 3, 2010 

Lance Gilgan 

 

 

 

 

122



Active Rec happenings during the month of December 2010 

Youth basketball is in full swing with 48 Rec teams 3rd to 8th grade 17 classic or competitive teams and 7 
Rec High school teams for a total of 72 youth basketball teams. 

They held their Jamboree on December 4th. 

They played 55 Rec games and approximately 17 Classic games in the Sherwood gyms in the month of 
December. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully  

Lance Gilgan 

 

 

123



Monthly Management Report 
 

January 13, 2011 

Sherwood Public Library – November 2010 
 
 
 

Current Yr       Past Yr       % Change 
 
 
Check out                               31,95528,996             +10% (14.5% self-check) 
 
 
Check in                                 24,093             23,935+.06%   
 
 

• New Library cards 119   
• Volunteer hours 138.4 hours (24 volunteers)   
 
 

 Monthly Activities 
  

• Thirty-one Baby, Preschool and Toddler story times (570 children / 401 adults)  
 

• One Read-to-the-Dogs program on Saturdays  
 

• Magazine Monday (free magazine giveaway) 
 

• 11/02  WCCLS Library Levy passes - Thank you! 
 
• 11/04  Mary Madland and Jenny Swanson tour Tigard and Murray Scholls library 

workrooms for recommendations for Sherwood workroom re-design for improved 
workflow, safety and efficiency. 
 

• 11/04  Friends of the Library Meeting 
 

• 11/11  Veteran’s Day – Library closed for the holiday 
 

• 11/16  Pam North, Madland and Swanson attended City training on Managing 
Union Employees and Contracts 
 

• 11/17  All-City Potluck 
 

• 11/18  Graphic Novel Workshop for Teens with Darren G. Davis, Editor-in-Chief 
of Bluewater Productions (25 attending) 

 
• 11/19  Library Staff Meeting  

 

124



Monthly Management Report 
 

January 13, 2011 

• 11/20  Oregon Poet Laureate, Paulann Petersen read from her works and 
interacted with the audience(17 attending) 
 

• 11/25-26  Thanksgiving & Friday after – Library closed for the holidays 
 

• Dawn Borgart hired as PT Library Assistant I 
 

• Two on-call positions offered to applicants from the Library Assistant I interviews 
 

• Volunteer recruitment, interviewing and training continues.  Six more library 
volunteers started shifts! 
 

• Pinn Crawford staffs virtual library services - L-Net & InfoQuest 
 

• Library staff attended various City and WCCLS committee meetings & events – 
Youth Services, WUG, Circulation Services, Policy Group, Cataloging, Safety 
and OLA/Public Library Division Board. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

125



Monthly Management Report 
 

January 13, 2011 

Sherwood Public Library – December 2010 
 
 

Current Yr       Past Yr       % Change 
 
 
Check out                               30,96127,023             +14.5 (14.7% self-check) 
 
 
Check in                                 23,928             22,276              +7%   
 

• New Library cards 101   
• Volunteer hours 178.55 hours (26 volunteers)   
 
 

 Monthly Activities 
 

• Thirty Baby, Preschool and Toddler story times (595 children / 399 adults)  

• One Read-to-the-Dogs program on Saturdays  

• Magazine Monday (free magazine giveaway) 

• 12/06-12 Food For Fines Week benefitting Sherwood Helping Hands 

• 12/15  Library opened at 1pm so staff could attend the City of Sherwood 2010 
Year-End Luncheon 
 

• 12/16  Library Advisory Board Meeting & City Council SWOT/Board Appreciation 
Dinner 
 

• 12/24-12/25  Library closed for Christmas holidays 

• 12/31  Library closed at 5pm for New Year’s Eve 

• Jenny Swanson provided training for new volunteers 

• Two new on-call Library Assistant I’s hired – Gwen Thompson & Mary Zickafoose 

• Year-end performance evaluations completed for management staff 

• Pinn Crawford staffs virtual library reference services - L-Net & InfoQuest 

• Library staff attended various City and WCCLS committee meetings & events – 
Youth Services, WUG, Circulation Services, Policy Group, Cataloging and 
Safety. 

126


	City Council Packet Cover 01.18.pdf
	City Council Agenda for 01.18.pdf
	01.04.11 City Council Draft Minutes.pdf
	Resolution 2011-007 Accepting City Audit for Yr Ending June 2010-DRAFT.pdf
	Resolution 2011-007 Accepting City Audit for Yr Ending June 2010-EXH A.pdf
	Resolution 2011-008 Correcting Res 2011-004 Wilsonville Water IGA-DRAFT.pdf
	Resolution 2011-008 Correcting Res 2011-004-Exh A.pdf
	Resolution 2011-009 Authorizing Agreement for Restroms at Stella Olsen Park-STAFF REPORT.pdf
	Resolution 2011-009 Authorizing Agreement for Restrooms at Stella Olsen Park-DRAFT.pdf
	Staff Dept. Reports
	11  Field House Report November 2010.pdf
	12  FieldHouse Report December 2010.pdf
	13  Recreation Report November 2010.pdf
	14  Recreation Report December 2010.pdf
	15  Library Report November 2010.pdf




